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         1                    P R O C E E D I N G S

         2           THE COURT:  YOUR WITNESS, MR. PEPPERMAN.

         3           MR. PEPPERMAN:  THANK YOU, YOUR HONOR.

         4                 CONTINUED CROSS-EXAMINATION

         5  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

         6  Q.   GOOD AFTERNOON, MR. NORRIS.

         7  A.   GOOD AFTERNOON.

         8  Q.   I BELIEVE BEFORE WE BROKE, YOU HAD TESTIFIED THAT IT

         9  WAS YOUR UNDERSTANDING WHEN YOU ASSUMED THE POSITION OF

        10  PROGRAM DIRECTOR FOR SOFTWARE STRATEGY IN 1995 THAT IBM

        11  RECEIVED THE LOWEST ROYALTY IN THE INDUSTRY FOR WINDOWS

        12  3.X BECAUSE IBM HAD JOINTLY DEVELOPED THAT PRODUCT WITH

        13  MICROSOFT; IS THAT CORRECT?

        14  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        15  Q.   NOW, YOU TESTIFIED ON DIRECT THAT MICROSOFT LICENSED

        16  WINDOWS 95 TO COMPAQ ON MORE FAVORABLE TERMS THAN IBM

        17  RECEIVED FROM MICROSOFT; IS THAT CORRECT?

        18  A.   THAT WAS OUR UNDERSTANDING, YES.

        19  Q.   AND IT'S YOUR TESTIMONY, SIR, IS IT NOT, THAT COMPAQ

        20  RECEIVED BETTER TERMS AND LOWER ROYALTIES THAN IBM DID

        21  BECAUSE COMPAQ DID NOT COMPETE WITH MICROSOFT; CORRECT?

        22  A.   YES.

        23  Q.   FIRST OF ALL, YOU HAVE NEVER SEEN COMPAQ'S LICENSE

        24  AGREEMENT WITH MICROSOFT, HAVE YOU?

        25  A.   NO, I HAVE NOT.
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         1  Q.   IN FACT, YOU'VE NEVER SEEN ANY OEM'S LICENSE

         2  AGREEMENT WITH MICROSOFT EXCEPT FOR IBM'S OWN AGREEMENT;

         3  IS THAT TRUE?

         4  A.   I THINK THAT'S CORRECT, YES.

         5  Q.   AND EVEN THOUGH YOU'VE NEVER SEEN COMPAQ'S AGREEMENT

         6  WITH MICROSOFT, IT WAS YOUR UNDERSTANDING IN 1995 AND

         7  1996, WAS IT NOT, THAT MICROSOFT AND COMPAQ HAD ENTERED

         8  INTO AN AGREEMENT CALLED THE "FRONTLINE PARTNERSHIP"?  IS

         9  THAT CORRECT?

        10  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        11  Q.   AND IT WAS ALSO YOUR UNDERSTANDING, WASN'T IT, THAT

        12  PURSUANT TO THAT FRONTLINE PARTNERSHIP, MICROSOFT AND

        13  COMPAQ MADE JOINT SALES CALLS ON CUSTOMERS?

        14  A.   AMONG OTHER THINGS, YES.

        15  Q.   AND IT WAS YOUR UNDERSTANDING, WAS IT NOT, THAT

        16  MICROSOFT AND COMPAQ HAD WORKED TOGETHER ON THE

        17  PLUG-AND-PLAY TECHNOLOGY IN WINDOWS 95?

        18  A.   THAT'S MY UNDERSTANDING.

        19  Q.   AND IT WAS YOUR UNDERSTANDING, WASN'T IT, THAT AS A

        20  RESULT OF THAT JOINT DEVELOPMENT WORK ON WINDOWS 95,

        21  COMPAQ RECEIVED ROYALTY REDUCTIONS FROM MICROSOFT FOR

        22  WINDOWS 95?

        23  A.   I'M SORRY, WOULD YOU REPEAT THAT QUESTION, PLEASE?

        24  Q.   SURE.

        25           AS A RESULT OF THE JOINT DEVELOPMENT WORK THAT
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         1  COMPAQ DID ON WINDOWS 95, IT WAS YOUR UNDERSTANDING, AS A

         2  RESULT OF THAT WORK, COMPAQ RECEIVED ROYALTY REDUCTIONS

         3  FROM MICROSOFT FOR WINDOWS 95; IS THAT CORRECT?

         4  A.   YES, AMONG OTHER THINGS.

         5           MR. PEPPERMAN:  NOW, I ASK THAT THE WITNESS BE

         6  SHOWN, AND I OFFER INTO EVIDENCE, DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT

         7  2624.  IT'S BATES NUMBERED 16311 THROUGH 52, AND IS

         8  ENTITLED "MICROSOFT REVIEW AGENDA."

         9           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        10           MR. MALONE:  NO OBJECTION.

        11           THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 2624 IS ADMITTED.

        12                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 2624 WAS

        13                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

        14  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

        15  Q.   THIS IS A LONG DOCUMENT.  WHAT I PROPOSE WE DO, IF

        16  IT'S ACCEPTABLE WITH YOU, IS THAT I WILL REFER YOU TO THE

        17  CHART THAT I'M GOING TO BE ASKING QUESTIONS ABOUT, AND YOU

        18  CAN LOOK AT THAT PAGE.  IF YOU NEED TO CONSULT OTHER PARTS

        19  OF THE DOCUMENT, YOU, OF COURSE, ARE FREE TO DO SO.  I'M

        20  GOING TO BE COMING BACK TO THIS DOCUMENT A COUPLE OF TIMES

        21  THIS AFTERNOON.

        22           IS THAT OKAY WITH YOU?

        23  A.   SURE, THAT'S OKAY WITH ME.

        24  Q.   OKAY.  I WOULD LIKE TO START WITH CHART 18, WHICH IS

        25  ON THE PAGE THAT BEARS THE BATES NUMBER 16348.
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         1  A.   I WOULD JUST LIKE TO FLIP THROUGH ALL THE CHARTS TO

         2  SEE WHAT'S HERE.

         3  Q.   JUST TELL ME WHEN YOU ARE READY, SIR.

         4           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)

         5  A.   OKAY.

         6  Q.   FIRST, SIR, LOOKING AT CHART 18, I NOTICE IN THE

         7  BOTTOM LEFT IT BEARS THE DATE 5/21/96.

         8           IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT THIS DOCUMENT WAS

         9  PREPARED IN MAY OF 1996?

        10  A.   THIS PARTICULAR CHART?

        11  Q.   YES, THIS CHART.

        12  A.   YES, I WOULD SAY THAT IT WAS PUT THERE SOMETIME IN

        13  MAY OF '96.

        14  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHO PREPARED IT?

        15  A.   YES, I DO.

        16  Q.   WHO PREPARED IT?

        17  A.   NOW I WILL HAVE TO PUT THIS ENTIRE PRESENTATION IN

        18  CONTEXT.

        19  Q.   CAN YOU ANSWER THE QUESTION WHO PREPARED IT--

        20  A.   I DON'T KNOW THAT.  I WOULD HAVE TO ANSWER IN

        21  CONTEXT.  THERE WERE FOUR PEOPLE PREPARING THE

        22  PRESENTATION FOR MAY 21ST, 1996, FOR SAM PALMISANO, OF

        23  WHICH THERE WERE A NUMBER OF CHARTS THAT WERE BEING

        24  PREPARED.  AND MYSELF, DIANA ROMERO, DEAN DUBINSKY AND

        25  MARTY AVALLON COLLABORATED ON THE CHARTS AS WE MADE THEM,
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         1  SO WE ELECTRONICALLY PASSED CHARTS BACK AND FORTH AS WE

         2  WERE MAKING THEM.  AND THEN OVER A WEEKEND, WE ALL GOT

         3  FURTHER TO FINALIZE THE CHARTS FOR THE PRESENTATION.

         4           THE COURT:  THIS IS A PRESENTATION TO WHOM?

         5           THE WITNESS:  IT WAS GOING TO BE MADE TO SAM

         6  PALMISANO.  SAM WAS THE NEW IN-COMING SENIOR VICE

         7  PRESIDENT AND GROUP EXECUTIVE FOR THE PERSONAL SYSTEMS

         8  GROUP.

         9           THE COURT:  OKAY.

        10  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

        11  Q.   SO, YOU WERE INVOLVED TOGETHER WITH MS. ROMERO,

        12  MR. AVALLON AND MR. DUBINSKY IN THE PREPARATION OF THESE

        13  CHARTS?

        14  A.   YES, I WAS.

        15  Q.   IF YOU COULD LOOK, SIR, AT THE FIRST TWO ENTRIES

        16  UNDER THE HEADING "MS-DOS/WINDOWS 3.1," THE FIRST TWO

        17  ENTRIES READ, "IBM CODEVELOPED DOS/WINDOWS WITH

        18  MICROSOFT."

        19           "AS A RESULT"--

        20  A.   HOLD ON.  YOU SAID CHART 18?

        21  Q.   CHART 18.  THE PAGE THAT HAS THE BATES NUMBER 16348.

        22  A.   I HAVE 16328.

        23           MR. PEPPERMAN:  MAY I APPROACH, YOUR HONOR?

        24           THE COURT:  I'M LOOKING AT THE SAME THING HE IS.

        25  IT SAYS "CHART 18" DOWN AT THE BOTTOM.
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         1           MR. PEPPERMAN:  THERE MIGHT BE MULTIPLE CHART

         2  18S.

         3           THE WITNESS:  THAT'S WHY I WAS TRYING TO TELL

         4  YOU, YOU NEED TO PUT THIS IN CONTEXT.

         5           MR. PEPPERMAN:  THE BATES NUMBER SHOULD BE 16348,

         6  YOUR HONOR, AND MR. NORRIS.

         7           THE COURT:  16348, ALL RIGHT.

         8           THE WITNESS:  IS THAT THE ONE?

         9           MR. PEPPERMAN:  YES.

        10  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

        11  Q.   I WAS REFERRING YOU, SIR, TO THE FIRST TWO ENTRIES

        12  UNDER MS-DOS/WINDOWS 3.1, WHICH READ, "IBM CODEVELOPED

        13  DOS/WINDOWS WITH MICROSOFT."

        14           "AS A RESULT, IBM ENJOYS THE BEST T'S AND C'S AND

        15  THE LOWEST ROYALTIES IN THE INDUSTRY FOR THESE PRODUCTS."

        16           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        17  A.   I DO.

        18  Q.   ARE T'S AND C'S A REFERENCE TO TERMS AND CONDITIONS?

        19  A.   YES.

        20  Q.   AND ARE THE TWO ENTRIES UNDER THE HEADING

        21  MS-DOS/WINDOWS 3.1 CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF

        22  WHAT THE FACTS WERE IN 1996?

        23  A.   YES.

        24  Q.   NOW, IF YOU COULD LOOK AT THE FIRST TWO ENTRIES UNDER

        25  THE HEADING "WINDOWS 95," WHICH READ, "COMPAQ CODEVELOPED
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         1  WINDOWS 95 WITH MICROSOFT."

         2           "AS A RESULT, COMPAQ ENJOYS THE BEST T'S AND C'S

         3  AND THE LOWEST ROYALTIES IN THE INDUSTRY."

         4           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         5  A.   YES, I DO.

         6  Q.   AND THOSE STATEMENTS ALSO ACCURATELY REFLECTED YOUR

         7  UNDERSTANDING IN MAY OF 1996, DIDN'T THEY?

         8  A.   AS WE WERE PREPARING THIS PRESENTATION, CERTAINLY DID

         9  AT THAT POINT.

        10  Q.   IN OTHER WORDS, IS IT FAIR TO SAY THAT COMPAQ

        11  RECEIVED THE LOWEST ROYALTY FOR WINDOWS 95, IN PART, SO

        12  THAT IT COULD RECOUP THE INVESTMENT IT HAD MADE IN

        13  CODEVELOPING THAT PRODUCT, MUCH LIKE THE REASON WHY IBM

        14  RECEIVED THE LOWEST ROYALTY FOR WINDOWS 3.X?

        15  A.   AS YOU SAID, IN PART, YOU WOULD BE CORRECT, BUT THEY

        16  ALSO DIDN'T COMPETE WITH IBM--EXCUSE ME--COMPETE WITH

        17  MICROSOFT.

        18  Q.   THIS CHART HERE, WHICH IS REFERRING TO ROYALTY

        19  CROSSOVER, DOES NOT SAY ANYTHING ABOUT COMPAQ NOT

        20  COMPETING WITH MICROSOFT; IS THAT CORRECT?

        21  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        22  Q.   NOW, JUST TO BE SURE TO DRAW THE CONTRAST, IBM DID

        23  NOT DO ANY JOINT DEVELOPMENT WORK WITH MICROSOFT ON

        24  WINDOWS 95, DID IT?

        25  A.   THAT WOULD BE CORRECT.
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         1  Q.   AND IT WOULD BE FAIR TO SAY THAT IBM RECOGNIZED,

         2  DIDN'T IT, THAT COMPAQ'S ROYALTIES FOR WINDOWS 95 WERE

         3  LOWER THAN IBM'S ROYALTIES DUE TO, ONE, THE FRONTLINE

         4  PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT BETWEEN COMPAQ AND MICROSOFT; AND

         5  TWO, THE JOINT DEVELOPMENT WORK THAT COMPAQ DID ON

         6  WINDOWS 95?

         7  A.   AND THREE, BECAUSE MICROSOFT TOLD IBM THEY DIDN'T

         8  COMPETE WITH MICROSOFT.

         9           MR. PEPPERMAN:  I'M GOING TO ASK THAT THE WITNESS

        10  BE SHOWN DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2674.  I'M GOING TO OFFER

        11  THAT EXHIBIT INTO EVIDENCE.

        12           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        13           MR. PEPPERMAN:  AND YOUR HONOR, FOR THE RECORD,

        14  THE BATES NUMBERS IN THIS DOCUMENT ARE 87690 TO 91, AND IT

        15  APPEARS TO BE AN E-MAIL FROM DIANA ROMERO TO J.M. KIRKE,

        16  DATED 2/12/97.  IT'S AN INTERNAL IBM E-MAIL.

        17           MR. MALONE:  NO OBJECTION.

        18           THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 2674 IS ADMITTED.

        19                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 2674 WAS

        20                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

        21  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

        22  Q.   MR. NORRIS, WHEN YOU'RE FINISHED REVIEWING THE

        23  DOCUMENT, PLEASE LET ME KNOW.

        24  A.   OKAY.

        25           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)
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         1  A.   OKAY, I READ IT.

         2  Q.   THE FIRST E-MAIL IN THIS DOCUMENT CHRONOLOGICALLY IS

         3  THE ONE THAT BEGINS AT THE BOTTOM OF THE FIRST PAGE AND

         4  CARRIES OVER TO THE SECOND PAGE; IS THAT CORRECT?

         5  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

         6  Q.   AND THAT'S AN E-MAIL FROM JEFF KING TO DIANA ROMERO?

         7  A.   JEFF KIRKE.

         8  Q.   KIRKE, EXCUSE ME.  JEFF KIRKE TO DIANA ROMERO.

         9  A.   UM-HMM.

        10  Q.   AND IN THAT E-MAIL, MR. KIRKE IS INQUIRING WHETHER

        11  COMPAQ'S ROYALTY FOR WINDOWS 95 WAS IN THE SUB $30 RANGE;

        12  CORRECT?

        13  A.   YES.

        14  Q.   AND MS. ROMERO, ON THE FIRST PAGE, RESPONDS TO

        15  MR. KIRKE'S E-MAIL, DOES SHE NOT?

        16  A.   YES, SHE DOES.

        17  Q.   IF YOU LOOK AT THE LAST TWO PARAGRAPHS OF HER E-MAIL,

        18  THEY READ, "ON THE COMPETITIVE ISSUE, WE ARE IN THE

        19  PROCESS OF GATHERING INFO FROM A CONSULTANT ON COMPETITIVE

        20  ROYALTIES.  THE INFO WE HAVE SO FAR IS THAT COMPAQ HAS A

        21  ROYALTY IN THE LOW TWENTIES.  WE ARE COLLECTING MORE INFO

        22  FROM THE CONSULTANT TO SUBSTANTIATE THIS ROYALTY RATE.  WE

        23  ALSO BELIEVE THAT THIS IS A HISTORICAL NUMBER, AND WE WANT

        24  TO GET MORE INFO ON THEIR 1997 ROYALTY.  I KNOW--IT'S HARD

        25  TO KNOW WHAT TO BELIEVE.  WE'VE ENGAGED SEVERAL
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         1  CONSULTANTS, AND THE INFO WE RECEIVED FROM THEM IS NOT

         2  CONSISTENT.  WE DO KNOW THAT COMPAQ'S ROYALTY IS

         3  SIGNIFICANTLY LOWER THAN OURS.  THIS IS DUE TO THE

         4  FRONTLINE PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT BETWEEN COMPAQ AND

         5  MICROSOFT AND JOINT DEVELOPMENT WORK THEY'VE DONE IN THE

         6  PAST."

         7           DO YOU SEE THAT?

         8  A.   I DO.

         9  Q.   AND MS. ROMERO DOES NOT MENTION IN HER E-MAIL TO

        10  MR. KIRKE THE THIRD REASON THAT YOU GAVE IN RESPONSE TO MY

        11  QUESTION, DID SHE?

        12  A.   NO, SHE DOES NOT.

        13  Q.   I BELIEVE YOU TESTIFIED ON DIRECT THAT IN 1994,

        14  MICROSOFT OFFERED IBM A FRONTLINE PARTNERSHIP; IS THAT

        15  CORRECT?

        16  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        17  Q.   AND IBM REJECTED THAT PROPOSAL; IS THAT TRUE?

        18  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        19  Q.   OKAY.  I'M GOING TO FOCUS NOW FOR A SECOND, SIR, ON

        20  MICROSOFT'S OFFERING OF THAT PROPOSAL AND IBM'S REJECTION.

        21  A.   OKAY.

        22  Q.   FIRST, IN 1994, BEFORE YOU BECAME PROGRAM DIRECTOR

        23  FOR SOFTWARE STRATEGY, IBM HAD REPEATEDLY REQUESTED FROM

        24  MICROSOFT, SIR, TERMS AND CONDITIONS ON PAR WITH COMPAQ;

        25  IS THAT TRUE?
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         1  A.   IBM DID BELIEVE THAT THEY WERE BEING DISADVANTAGED IN

         2  THE MARKETPLACE AT THAT TIME IN '94, AND DID, IN FACT, ASK

         3  OF MICROSOFT TO BE ON PAR WITH COMPAQ.

         4  Q.   AND IBM HAD CONSISTENTLY AND CONSTANTLY GONE BACK TO

         5  MICROSOFT AND REQUESTED ROYALTIES AND TERMS AND CONDITIONS

         6  ON PAR WITH COMPAQ; ISN'T THAT TRUE, SIR?

         7  A.   RECALL IN 1994, WINDOWS 95 WAS NOT OUT YET, SO WE

         8  WERE ENJOYING THE BENEFITS OF WINDOWS 3.11.  WHAT THE TEAM

         9  TOLD ME IS THEY HAD BEGUN TO SEE NOT ONLY SHIFTS THAT

        10  WOULD APPEAR THAT COMPAQ WOULD BEGIN TO GET LOWER PRICES

        11  ON ROYALTIES AND TERMS AND CONDITIONS, BUT THAT THE

        12  SUPPORT PROGRAMS, THE JOINT SALES CALLS, THE JOINT

        13  DEVELOPMENT EFFORTS, WERE NOT BEING ENTERTAINED.

        14           SO, IT WAS NOT JUST PRICES.  IT WAS SEVERAL

        15  THINGS.

        16  Q.   I APPRECIATE THAT, SIR, BUT MY SPECIFIC QUESTION, IF

        17  YOU WOULD FOCUS ON IT FOR A SECOND, IN 1994, IT'S TRUE,

        18  ISN'T IT, BASED ON YOUR UNDERSTANDING, THAT IBM HAD

        19  CONSISTENTLY AND CONSTANTLY GONE BACK TO MICROSOFT AND

        20  REQUESTED FAVORABLE TERMS AND CONDITIONS ON PAR WITH

        21  COMPAQ'S?

        22  A.   I WOULD NOT CHARACTERIZE IT AS CONSISTENTLY AND

        23  CONSTANTLY.  THERE IS ONE SET OF CHARTS THAT I THINK

        24  YOU'RE REFERRING TO.  WHEN I WAS BRIEFED COMING INTO THE

        25  JOB IN MARCH OF 1995, I WAS TOLD THAT WE REQUESTED PAR
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         1  WITH COMPAQ.  I WASN'T TOLD THAT WE CONSISTENTLY AND

         2  CONSTANTLY.  WE ALREADY HAD THE LOWEST PRICE IN THE

         3  INDUSTRY.  THAT WOULD MAKE SENSE FROM A PRICE PERSPECTIVE.

         4  Q.   WOULD YOU LOOK, SIR, AT PAGE 73 OF YOUR DEPOSITION,

         5  THROUGH PAGE 74.

         6  A.   OKAY.

         7  Q.   AND I'M REFERRING YOU TO PAGE 73, LINE 7, THROUGH 74,

         8  LINE 4.

         9  A.   LINE 73, LINE 4?

        10  Q.   73, LINE 7, THROUGH 74, LINE 4.

        11  A.   OKAY.  LINE 7 BEGINS WITH THE ANSWER, "SURE I HAVE"?

        12  Q.   PAGE 73, LINE 7?

        13  A.   THAT'S WHAT I'M LOOKING AT.

        14           MR. PEPPERMAN:  MAY I APPROACH, YOUR HONOR?

        15           THE COURT:  SURE.

        16  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

        17  Q.   IT'S LINE 17, MR. NORRIS.  THE SPIRALED BINDER OF MY

        18  TRANSCRIPT OBSCURED THE ONE.  IT BEGINS WITH THE QUESTION.

        19           MR. PEPPERMAN:  COULD WE PUT THAT PART OF THE

        20  TESTIMONY UP.

        21           THE WITNESS:  WHICH LINE ON PAGE 74?

        22  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

        23  Q.   LINE 4 OF 74.

        24  A.   OKAY.  I READ IT.

        25  Q.   MR. NORRIS, DO YOU RECALL BEING ASKED THE FOLLOWING
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         1  QUESTION AND GIVING THE FOLLOWING ANSWER, (READING):

         2                "QUESTION:  MR. NORRIS, IN 1994, DID IBM

         3           REQUEST FROM MICROSOFT A RELATIONSHIP ON PAR WITH

         4           COMPAQ'S RELATIONSHIP WITH MICROSOFT?

         5                ANSWER:  IN 1994, WE BEGUN TO SEE THAT WE

         6           WERE DISADVANTAGED IN THE MARKETPLACE, AND

         7           SOMEWHERE IN THE '94-95 TIME FRAME, WE LOST THE

         8           NUMBER ONE POSITION AS BEING THE LARGEST PC

         9           MANUFACTURER IN THE WORLD.  WE CONSISTENTLY AND

        10           CONSTANTLY WENT BACK TO COMPAQ, AS I UNDERSTOOD

        11           IT AT THE TIME--EXCUSE ME--TO MICROSOFT TO--TO

        12           ASK ABOUT GETTING FAVORABLE TERMS AND CONDITIONS

        13           ON PAR WITH COMPAQ.  THE ANSWER IS YES, WE DID."

        14           WAS THAT YOUR TESTIMONY ON MAY 27TH, 1999?

        15  A.   YES, IT WAS.

        16  Q.   AND IS THAT STILL YOUR TESTIMONY TODAY?

        17  A.   AGAIN, TO PUT IT IN PERSPECTIVE--

        18  Q.   COULD I HAVE A YES, NO, OR I-DON'T-KNOW ANSWER TO MY

        19  QUESTION, AND THEN YOU COULD PUT IT IN PERSPECTIVE.

        20  A.   SURE.

        21  Q.   IS THAT STILL YOUR TESTIMONY TODAY?

        22  A.   IT IS MY TESTIMONY THAT WE CONSISTENTLY AND

        23  CONSTANTLY WENT TO MICROSOFT TO BE ON PAR WITH COMPAQ

        24  DURING MY TENURE FROM '95 TO '97.

        25  Q.   NOW, LET'S FOCUS ON 1994, IF WE COULD.  AT IBM'S
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         1  REQUEST, MICROSOFT, IN 1994, PROPOSED A FRONTLINE

         2  PARTNERSHIP BETWEEN IBM AND MICROSOFT THAT WOULD HAVE BEEN

         3  COMPARABLE TO THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN COMPAQ AND

         4  MICROSOFT; IS THAT CORRECT?

         5  A.   I'M SORRY, REPEAT THAT AGAIN, PLEASE?

         6  Q.   SURE.

         7           AT IBM'S REQUEST IN 1994, MICROSOFT PROPOSED A

         8  FRONTLINE PARTNERSHIP BETWEEN IBM AND MICROSOFT THAT WOULD

         9  HAVE BEEN COMPARABLE TO THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN COMPAQ

        10  AND MICROSOFT; IS THAT CORRECT?

        11  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        12  Q.   AND PURSUANT TO THAT PARTNERSHIP, IBM AND MICROSOFT

        13  WOULD HAVE DONE JOINT SALES MARKETING AND DEVELOPMENT

        14  WORK; CORRECT?

        15  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        16  Q.   AND IN EXCHANGE, IBM WOULD HAVE OBTAINED FUTURE

        17  MICROSOFT PRODUCTS AT THE LOWEST RATES IN THE INDUSTRY;

        18  CORRECT?

        19  A.   I BELIEVE THAT'S CORRECT.

        20  Q.   WELL, LET'S TAKE A LOOK AGAIN AT DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT

        21  2624 THAT WAS THE FIRST DOCUMENT I GAVE YOU WITH THE

        22  VARIOUS SLIDES.  AND RATHER THAN REFER TO CHART

        23  NUMBERS--THAT MESSED ME UP LAST TIME--I WILL GIVE YOU A

        24  BATES NUMBER.  IF YOU COULD LOOK, SIR, AT THE CHART BATES

        25  16332.
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         1  A.   OKAY.

         2  Q.   NOW, THIS PAGE THAT WE ARE LOOKING AT HERE, THIS PAGE

         3  WAS PREPARED BY DEAN DUBINSKY OF IBM; IS THAT CORRECT?

         4  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

         5  Q.   AND MR. DUBINSKY WAS THE MICROSOFT RELATIONSHIP

         6  MANAGER IN 1994; IS THAT CORRECT?

         7  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

         8  Q.   AND MR. DUBINSKY WAS ALSO ONE OF THE PEOPLE WHO

         9  BRIEFED YOU ON THE HISTORY OF THE IBM/MICROSOFT

        10  RELATIONSHIP WHEN YOU BECAME PROGRAM DIRECTOR FOR SOFTWARE

        11  STRATEGY IN MARCH OF '95; CORRECT?

        12  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        13  Q.   NOW, IF YOU LOOK AT THE SECOND BULLET ON THIS PAGE,

        14  IT READS, "MICROSOFT PROPOSED FRONTLINE PARTNERSHIP."

        15           "IBM AND MICROSOFT TO JOIN IN SALES, MARKETING,

        16  DEVELOPMENT, AND FIELD SUPPORT."

        17           "IN EXCHANGE, IBM TO OBTAIN FUTURE MICROSOFT

        18  PRODUCTS AT THE LOWEST RATES IN THE INDUSTRY."

        19           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        20  A.   I DO.

        21  Q.   NOW, AT YOUR DEPOSITION, SIR, YOU TOLD ME, DID YOU

        22  NOT, THAT ONE OF THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE PROPOSED

        23  FRONTLINE PARTNERSHIP BETWEEN IBM AND MICROSOFT WAS THAT

        24  IBM ELIMINATE OR DROP OS/2?  CORRECT?

        25  A.   I BELIEVE I SAID REDUCE, DROP OR ELIMINATE.  I THINK
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         1  I SAID IT BOTH WAYS.

         2  Q.   OKAY.  BUT YOU AGREE, SIR, THAT YOU WERE VERY CAREFUL

         3  YESTERDAY, I KNOW, IN YOUR TESTIMONY TO USE THE PHRASE

         4  "REDUCE, DROP OR ELIMINATE"; CORRECT?

         5  A.   YES.

         6  Q.   DURING YOUR DEPOSITION, SOMETIMES YOU SIMPLY JUST

         7  SAID DROP OR ELIMINATE; CORRECT?

         8  A.   AND I DO RECALL SAYING REDUCE, DROP OR ELIMINATE IN

         9  THE DEPOSITION ALSO, I BELIEVE.

        10  Q.   YOU SAID IT BOTH WAYS AT YOUR DEPOSITION.

        11  A.   OKAY.

        12  Q.   IS THAT TRUE?

        13  A.   I BELIEVE THAT'S CORRECT, YES.

        14  Q.   NOW, YOU AGREE, SIR, DON'T YOU, THAT THERE IS A

        15  DIFFERENCE BETWEEN BEING ASKED TO REDUCE SHIPMENTS OF

        16  SOMETHING AND BEING ASKED TO DROP OR ELIMINATE SHIPMENTS

        17  OF SOMETHING?

        18  A.   SURE, THERE IS A DIFFERENCE BETWEEN REDUCE AND DROP.

        19  Q.   RIGHT.  REDUCE COULD MEAN REDUCE SHIPMENTS BY FIVE

        20  PERCENT, WHEREAS ELIMINATE IMPLIES THAT YOU ELIMINATE

        21  SHIPMENTS ENTIRELY; CORRECT?

        22  A.   THAT COULD MEAN THAT, SURE.

        23  Q.   NOW, I KNOW YOU USED THE PHRASE "REDUCE, DROP OR

        24  ELIMINATE."  MY QUESTION FOR YOU IS:  WAS IT A REQUIREMENT

        25  OF THE PROPOSED ALLIANCE THAT MICROSOFT OFFERED TO IBM, AT
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         1  IBM'S REQUEST, THAT IBM DROP OR ELIMINATE SHIPMENTS OF

         2  OS/2?

         3  A.   THERE ARE THREE THINGS THAT I RECALL FROM THE

         4  REQUIREMENT PERSPECTIVE, AS WE UNDERSTOOD IT, FROM THE

         5  TIME THAT I WAS BRIEFED AND TO THE TIME THAT IT WAS

         6  REPROPOSED, THAT THE DOCUMENTS SAID THAT WE SHOULD FOCUS

         7  ON AND PRIMARILY PROMOTE MICROSOFT PRODUCTS, AND LEAD WITH

         8  MICROSOFT PRODUCTS.  AND THEN WE'RE TOLD VERBALLY, ORALLY,

         9  THAT WE SHOULD REDUCE, DROP OR ELIMINATE OS/2, AND THEN

        10  THE MDA REINFORCED THAT BY SAYING MAKE WINDOWS 95 YOUR

        11  STANDARD OPERATING SYSTEM, WHICH ESSENTIALLY MEANS REDUCE.

        12  Q.   LET'S FOCUS ON THE EVENTS OF THE SUMMER OF '94 GOING

        13  INTO THE FALL OF '94.

        14           NOW, WHO TOLD YOU THAT MICROSOFT HAD VERBALLY

        15  USED THE PHRASE "REDUCE, DROP OR ELIMINATE"?

        16  A.   I WAS TOLD DURING THE MARCH BRIEFING BY DEAN DUBINSKY

        17  THAT MICROSOFT WANTED US TO STOP SHIPPING OS/2.  THEY

        18  DIDN'T WANT US TO COMPETE, IS THE TERMINOLOGY THAT WAS

        19  USED.

        20  Q.   WELL, MR. DUBINSKY PREPARED THIS CHART THAT WE ARE

        21  LOOKING AT.

        22  A.   UM-HMM.

        23  Q.   AND HE DISCUSSES THE PROPOSED FRONTLINE PARTNERSHIP.

        24           MR. DUBINSKY DOESN'T SAY IN THIS CHART THAT A

        25  REQUIREMENT OF THE FRONTLINE PARTNERSHIP WAS THAT IBM
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         1  REDUCE, DROP OR ELIMINATE OS/2; IS THAT CORRECT?

         2  A.   WORDS ARE CERTAINLY NOT ON THIS CHART, BUT WHEN

         3  GIVING PRESENTATIONS, A NUMBER OF THINGS ARE SAID THAT ARE

         4  NOT ON THE CHART.  AND WHAT I'M TELLING YOU IS WHAT I WAS

         5  TOLD WHEN I CAME ON THE JOB, AND THAT IS THAT THEY WANTED

         6  US TO STOP COMPETING WITH OS/2.

         7  Q.   AND YOU WERE TOLD THAT BY MR. DUBINSKY; CORRECT?

         8  A.   YES.

         9  Q.   NOW, IS IT YOUR EXPERIENCE AS A BUSINESSPERSON THAT

        10  IN PREPARING CHARTS OF THIS NATURE WITH BULLET POINTS THAT

        11  PEOPLE ATTEMPT TO INCLUDE ON THE CHART THE MOST IMPORTANT

        12  OR THE MOST SALIENT TERMS?

        13  A.   OR TO NOT INCLUDE THE THINGS THAT COULD BE THE MOST

        14  CONTROVERSIAL.

        15  Q.   OKAY.  SO, IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY THAT MR. DUBINSKY, IN

        16  PREPARING THIS CHART, DID NOT INCLUDE, IN BRIEFING

        17  MR. PALMISANO, THAT ONE OF THE REQUIREMENTS WAS THAT IBM

        18  REDUCE, DROP OR ELIMINATE OS/2 BECAUSE THAT WAS TOO

        19  CONTROVERSIAL?

        20  A.   NOW, YOU JUST SAID SEVERAL THINGS THERE ABOUT

        21  BRIEFING PALMISANO.  THIS CHART SAYS "MSN.PRE."  THIS

        22  PARTICULAR CHART WAS NOT USED IN BRIEFING PALMISANO.  THE

        23  CHARTS THAT I USED WHEN I PRESENTED TO PALMISANO SAYS

        24  MSN.FIN, FINAL, OKAY?  I DON'T KNOW THAT THIS CHART WAS

        25  EVER USED IN FRONT OF SAM, AND I DON'T THINK IT WAS.  EVEN
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         1  WITH CHARTS THAT SAY MSN.FIN, WHEN I BRIEF AN EXECUTIVE,

         2  MOST OF THE CHARTS WERE BACKUP PURPOSES THAN THEY ARE FOR

         3  PRIMARY PURPOSES.  SO, I DON'T KNOW IF CHART WAS EVER

         4  SHOWN TO SAM.

         5  Q.   IN THE CHART THAT YOU USE, SIR, AND THAT YOU CREATED,

         6  DID YOU INCLUDE IN YOUR CHART THE REQUIREMENT THAT IBM

         7  REDUCE, DROP OR ELIMINATE OS/2?

         8  A.   I WOULD HAVE TO LOOK AT THE CHART.  I DON'T SEE THE

         9  CHART.

        10  Q.   YOUR INFORMATION ON THIS IS BASED ON WHAT

        11  MR. DUBINSKY TOLD YOU, THE AUTHOR OF THIS DOCUMENT;

        12  CORRECT?

        13  A.   DEAN IS NOT THE AUTHOR OF THIS ENTIRE DOCUMENT.

        14  Q.   THIS PAGE.

        15  A.   THIS PAGE, DEAN IS THE AUTHOR OF IT.  BASED ON WHAT

        16  HE TOLD ME, YES.

        17  Q.   NOW, YOU ALSO TOLD ME AT YOUR DEPOSITION, AND I

        18  BELIEVE YOU TESTIFIED TO THIS YESTERDAY IN RESPONSE TO

        19  MR. MALONE'S QUESTION, THAT ANOTHER REQUIREMENT OF THE

        20  PROPOSED ALLIANCE WAS THAT IBM PROMOTE AND MARKET

        21  MICROSOFT PRODUCTS EXCLUSIVELY; IS THAT CORRECT?

        22  A.   THAT IS CORRECT.

        23           AND I ALSO MAY USE THE TERM "JOINTLY AND

        24  EXCLUSIVELY," SO I MAY HAVE USED THEM INTERCHANGEABLY AT

        25  THE DEPOSITION.
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         1  Q.   AGAIN, YOU AGREE WITH ME, SIR, DON'T YOU, THAT THERE

         2  IS A DIFFERENCE BETWEEN REQUIRING SOMEONE TO MARKET

         3  SOMETHING JOINTLY WITH YOU AND REQUIRING SOMEONE TO MARKET

         4  SOMETHING EXCLUSIVELY?

         5  A.   IT COULD BE BOTH WAYS.  TO MARKET JOINTLY AND

         6  EXCLUSIVELY MEANING JOINTLY MICROSOFT AND IBM PROBABLY

         7  TOGETHER MARKETING, CREATING AWARENESS, CREATING INTEREST.

         8  IBM EXCLUSIVELY BY ITSELF WITHOUT MICROSOFT, DOING IT OR

         9  WITHOUT IBM BY ITSELF.

        10  Q.   BUT IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY THAT ONE OF THE REQUIREMENTS

        11  OF THE FRONTLINE PARTNERSHIP WAS THAT IBM AGREED TO

        12  PROMOTE MICROSOFT PRODUCTS EXCLUSIVELY?

        13  A.   YES.

        14  Q.   AND AGAIN, MR. DUBINSKY DID NOT INCLUDE THAT

        15  REQUIREMENT IN THIS CHART, DID HE?

        16  A.   IT'S NOT ON THE CHART.

        17  Q.   OKAY.  LET'S LOOK AT THE NEXT ENTRY IN THE CHART.

        18  "IBM AND MICROSOFT MEET CHICAGO, AUGUST 1994."

        19           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        20  A.   UM-HMM, I DO.

        21  Q.   WAS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT THERE WAS A MEETING IN

        22  CHICAGO IN AUGUST OF 1994?

        23  A.   YES.

        24  Q.   AND THE DOCUMENT INDICATES THAT THE ATTENDEES ARE

        25  BRUCE CLAFLIN AND TONY SANTELLI OF IBM, AND JOACHIM KEMPIN
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         1  OF MICROSOFT.

         2           IS THAT CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING OF WHO

         3  ATTENDED THE AUGUST 1994 CHICAGO MEETING?

         4  A.   YES, THAT IS CONSISTENT.

         5  Q.   AND THE FINAL--

         6  A.   AND I UNDERSTOOD--I'M NOT SURE, BUT BABER MAY HAVE

         7  BEEN IN ATTENDANCE, ALSO.

         8  Q.   BUT THE PEOPLE LISTED ON THIS DOCUMENT, YOUR

         9  UNDERSTANDING IS THEY WERE IN ATTENDANCE?

        10  A.   YES.

        11  Q.   AND THE FINAL ENTRY IS, "IBM AND MICROSOFT CREATED

        12  FRAMEWORK DOCUMENT FOR ALLIANCE."

        13           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        14  A.   I DO.

        15  Q.   NOW, THAT FRAMEWORK DOCUMENT, THAT DOCUMENT SET OUT

        16  THE GUIDELINES FOR THE PROPOSED MICROSOFT/IBM ALLIANCE;

        17  CORRECT?

        18  A.   THAT'S MY UNDERSTANDING, YES.

        19  Q.   AND IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT MICROSOFT PRESENTED

        20  IBM WITH A DRAFT OF THAT FRAMEWORK DOCUMENT AT THE AUGUST

        21  1994 MEETING?

        22  A.   NO, NO.  MY UNDERSTANDING IS THAT MARK BABER AND DEAN

        23  MET AFTERWARDS TO COME UP WITH THE FRAMEWORK FOR THE

        24  ALLIANCE.

        25  Q.   SO, YOUR UNDERSTANDING IS THAT SUBSEQUENT TO THIS
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         1  MEETING, MR. BABER OF MICROSOFT AND MR. DUBINSKY OF IBM

         2  NEGOTIATED THE FRAMEWORK DOCUMENT?

         3  A.   NO, I DIDN'T USE THOSE TERMS.

         4  Q.   CREATED THE FRAMEWORK DOCUMENT?

         5  A.   YES.

         6  Q.   AND YOU'VE REVIEWED THE FRAMEWORK DOCUMENT YOURSELF,

         7  SIR, IN THE LAST FEW MONTHS, HAVEN'T YOU?

         8  A.   YES, I HAVE, AND I REVIEWED IT WHEN I CAME IN MARCH

         9  AS WELL.

        10  Q.   AND AFTER THE AUGUST 1994 MEETING IN CHICAGO,

        11  BOTH--ONCE THE FRAMEWORK DOCUMENT WAS CREATED, IBM

        12  EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT REVIEWED THE FRAMEWORK DOCUMENT AS

        13  THE PROPOSAL FOR THE PROPOSED IBM/MICROSOFT ALLIANCE;

        14  CORRECT?

        15  A.   EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT DID REVIEW IT, YES.

        16           MR. PEPPERMAN:  I ASK THAT THE WITNESS BE SHOWN,

        17  AND I OFFER INTO EVIDENCE, DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2625.  IT'S

        18  AN IBM DOCUMENT, BEARS THE BATES NUMBERS 6012 THROUGH 15,

        19  AND IS ENTITLED "IBM PC COMPANY/MICROSOFT STRATEGIC

        20  RELATIONSHIP."

        21           (DOCUMENT HANDED TO THE WITNESS.)

        22           MR. MALONE:  NO OBJECTION.

        23           THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 2625 IS ADMITTED.

        24                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 2625 WAS

        25                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)
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         1  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

         2  Q.   SIR, MY QUESTION IS GOING TO BE DIRECTED AT THE

         3  NEXT-TO-LAST BULLET ON THE FIRST PAGE, JUST TO HELP ORIENT

         4  YOU.

         5           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)

         6  A.   ONLY ON THE FIRST PAGE?

         7  Q.   I'M ONLY GOING TO ASK YOU A COUPLE OF QUESTIONS ABOUT

         8  THE FIRST PAGE.

         9  A.   GO AHEAD.

        10  Q.   FIRST, THIS THE COPY OF THE FRAMEWORK DOCUMENT THAT

        11  YOU REVIEWED IN THE LAST FEW MONTHS?

        12  A.   YES.

        13  Q.   IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT THIS IS THE FIRST DRAFT

        14  OF THE FRAMEWORK DOCUMENT?

        15  A.   I'M NOT CERTAIN THAT THIS IS THE FIRST DRAFT OF THE

        16  FRAMEWORK DOCUMENT.  I DON'T HAVE A WAY TO IDENTIFY THAT.

        17  Q.   OKAY.  IF YOU LOOK AT THAT NEXT-TO-LAST BULLET, I

        18  BELIEVE YOU TESTIFIED A FEW MOMENTS AGO IN RESPONSE TO MY

        19  QUESTIONS THAT YOUR UNDERSTANDING WAS THAT MICROSOFT ASKED

        20  THAT IBM PRIMARILY PROMOTE MICROSOFT DESKTOP SOFTWARE

        21  PLATFORMS; CORRECT?

        22  A.   SOMETHING SIMILAR TO THAT.

        23  Q.   THE WORDS YOU USED WERE "PRIMARILY PROMOTE"; CORRECT?

        24  A.   UM-HMM.

        25  Q.   YOU HAVE TO ANSWER ORALLY.
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         1  A.   YES.

         2  Q.   NOW, THIS SPECIFIC BULLET, THE NEXT TO LAST ONE THIS

         3  PAGE, READS, "IBM MUST BE FOCUSED ON, COMMITTED TO, AND

         4  PRIMARILY PROMOTE MICROSOFT DESKTOP SOFTWARE PLATFORMS,

         5  I.E., WINDOWS FOR WORKGROUPS, WINDOWS AND CHICAGO."

         6           IS THAT BULLET THERE THE SOURCE OF YOUR

         7  INFORMATION ABOUT THE OBLIGATION BEING TO PRIMARILY

         8  PROMOTE MICROSOFT PRODUCTS?

         9  A.   THE SOURCE OF MY--

        10  Q.   YOUR INFORMATION OR YOUR UNDERSTANDING.

        11  A.   I HAVE TWO SOURCES OF INFORMATION.  ONE FROM THE

        12  ORIGINAL BRIEFINGS THAT I RECEIVED IN MARCH OF '95, AND

        13  THEN THIS DOCUMENT.

        14  Q.   THIS IS ONE OF THE SOURCES OF YOUR UNDERSTANDING?

        15  A.   CERTAINLY.

        16  Q.   NOW, THIS LANGUAGE THAT WE JUST LOOKED AT REQUIRING

        17  THAT IBM PRIMARILY PROMOTE LANGUAGE OF THIS DOCUMENT,

        18  MICROSOFT DESKTOP SOFTWARE PLATFORMS, IT DOESN'T REQUIRE

        19  THAT IBM DROP OR ELIMINATE OS/2, DOES IT?

        20  A.   IT DOES NOT READ "DROP OR ELIMINATE OS/2."

        21  Q.   NOW, ARE YOU AWARE, SIR, THAT AFTER THIS DRAFT OF THE

        22  DOCUMENT THAT IBM WAS ABLE TO OBTAIN ADDITIONAL

        23  FLEXIBILITY WITH REGARD TO ITS PROMOTION OF IBM PRODUCTS

        24  IN SUBSEQUENT NEGOTIATIONS WITH MICROSOFT OVER THE

        25  FRONTLINE PARTNERSHIP?

                                                           28

         1  A.   I DON'T UNDERSTAND YOUR QUESTION, I'M SORRY.

         2  Q.   ARE YOU AWARE THAT AFTER THIS DOCUMENT WAS CREATED,

         3  IBM, THROUGH SUBSEQUENT NEGOTIATIONS WITH MICROSOFT, WAS

         4  ABLE TO GET ADDITIONAL FLEXIBILITY, MORE FLEXIBILITY

         5  THAT'S SET FORTH IN THIS BULLET POINT IN NEGOTIATING THE

         6  PROPOSED ALLIANCE?

         7  A.   LET ME SEE IF I COULD UNDERSTAND THIS.  THAT WERE

         8  LESS RESTRICTIVE THAN THIS?

         9  Q.   LESS RESTRICTIVE FOR IBM.

        10  A.   WHAT TIME FRAME?

        11  Q.   AUGUST AND SEPTEMBER OF 1994.

        12  A.   NO.

        13  Q.   I ASK THAT THE WITNESS--

        14  A.   NOT THAT I RECALL AT THE MOMENT.

        15           MR. PEPPERMAN:  I ASK THAT THE WITNESS BE SHOWN,

        16  AND I OFFER INTO EVIDENCE, DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2626.  IT

        17  BEARS THE BATES NUMBERS MX 6184184 THROUGH 96, AND IS

        18  ENTITLED "IBM/MICROSOFT ALLIANCE PROPOSAL."  AND THE DRAFT

        19  IS DATED AUGUST 18, 1994.

        20           THE WITNESS:  CAN YOU TELL ME WHICH DRAFT IS

        21  FIRST?  I DON'T SEE A DATE ON THIS.

        22  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

        23  Q.   I THINK, SIR, THAT MIGHT BECOME APPARENT AS WE GO

        24  THROUGH DRAFTS.  I DON'T WANT TO TESTIFY FOR YOU.

        25  A.   I DON'T WANT YOU TO.
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         1  Q.   TWO THINGS WE ARE IN AGREEMENT ON.

         2           AND AGAIN, SIR--I OFFERED THIS DOCUMENT.

         3           MR. MALONE:  NO OBJECTION.

         4  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

         5  Q.   AGAIN, SIR, IF YOU NEED TO ANSWER MY QUESTION TO LOOK

         6  AT--

         7           THE COURT:  MAY I ADMIT IT INTO EVIDENCE BEFORE

         8  YOU ASK HIM QUESTIONS ABOUT IT?

         9           MR. PEPPERMAN:  I'M OVEREAGER, YOUR HONOR.  I'M

        10  SORRY.

        11           THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 2626 IS ADMITTED.

        12                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 2626 WAS

        13                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

        14           MR. PEPPERMAN:  LACK OF EXPERIENCE.

        15           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

        16           MR. PEPPERMAN:  TWO TIMES.  YOU DON'T GET A

        17  THIRD; RIGHT?

        18           THE COURT:  GO AHEAD.

        19  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

        20  Q.   MR. NORRIS, FEEL FREE TO LOOK AT AS MUCH OF THIS

        21  DOCUMENT AS YOU LIKE.  MY QUESTIONS, THOUGH, JUST TO

        22  ORIENT YOU, ARE GOING TO RELATE TO THE THIRD PAGE OF THIS

        23  DOCUMENT, THE ONE WITH THE BATES NUMBER MX 6184186, AND

        24  IT'S THE THIRD BULLET UP FROM THE BOTTOM.

        25           THE COURT:  I'M A LITTLE CONFUSED ON THIS ONE.
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         1  THIS DRAFT OVER HERE IS AN IBM DOCUMENT THAT'S 2625.  THIS

         2  IBM/MICROSOFT ALLIANCE PROPOSAL APPEARS TO BE A MICROSOFT

         3  DOCUMENT; IS THAT CORRECT?

         4           MR. PEPPERMAN:  YES, YOUR HONOR.  IF YOU LIKE, I

         5  CAN EXPLAIN THE REASON FOR THAT.

         6           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

         7           MR. PEPPERMAN:  THE SUBPOENA THAT MICROSOFT

         8  SERVED ON IBM FOR DOCUMENTS WAS DATED JANUARY 1ST, 1995,

         9  THROUGH--I DON'T RECALL WHAT THE CUTOFF DATE WAS--I THINK

        10  I NEGOTIATED WITH IBM'S COUNSEL--END OF '98.  IN THE

        11  COURSE OF MR. NORRIS'S DEPOSITION, HE MENTIONED HAVING

        12  SEEN A DRAFT OF THE FRAMEWORK DOCUMENT, AND IBM SENT ME A

        13  COPY OF THAT DOCUMENT, WHICH I THINK HAD BEEN PRODUCED TO

        14  MICROSOFT BY IBM IN A PRIOR PRODUCTION.

        15           IBM DID NOT PRODUCE A COPY OF THE DRAFT THAT I

        16  JUST NOW MARKED AS EXHIBIT.  THESE ARE FROM MICROSOFT'S

        17  FILES FROM THE TIME PERIOD.

        18           THE COURT:  WELL, IS IT YOUR CONTENTION THAT 2625

        19  METAMORPHOSED INTO 2626?

        20           MR. PEPPERMAN:  I THINK I'M GOING TO GO THROUGH

        21  ONE MORE DRAFT.  I THINK IT'S GOING TO BECOME APPARENT.

        22  I'M GOING TO TRY TO ELICIT TESTIMONY FROM THE WITNESS THAT

        23  THE DRAFTS WENT FROM THE FIRST DRAFT THAT I MARKED, THE

        24  IBM DRAFT, SAID THIS DRAFT TO ANOTHER DRAFT, AND THAT WITH

        25  THE NEGOTIATIONS, IBM GOT ADDITIONAL FLEXIBILITY.
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         1           THE COURT:  MR. MALONE?

         2           MR. MALONE:  YOUR HONOR, WITH THAT EXPLANATION, I

         3  WOULD ONLY ASK THAT THERE BE SOME FOUNDATION THAT, IN

         4  FACT, THIS IS A DOCUMENT THAT IBM SAW AND WAS EXCHANGED.

         5  IT WAS COMING FROM MICROSOFT'S FILES.  I BELIEVE THERE

         6  NEEDS TO BE SOME FOUNDATION.

         7           THE COURT:  THERE NEEDS TO BE FOUNDATION TO SHOW

         8  HOW THEY RELATE TO ONE ANOTHER, IN ANY EVENT.

         9           MR. MALONE:  YES, YOUR HONOR.

        10           THE COURT:  OTHER THAN YOURS.

        11           MR. PEPPERMAN:  WELL, YOUR HONOR, BEING LIMITED

        12  IN TERMS OF WITNESSES AT THIS REBUTTAL PHASE, I CANNOT

        13  PRODUCE A WITNESS TO PROVIDE THAT FOUNDATION.  I WILL GO

        14  THROUGH THIS WITH MR. NORRIS.  I THINK THE COURT WILL BE

        15  ABLE TO NOTE THAT THE EVOLUTION OF THE LANGUAGE IN THESE

        16  PROVISIONS--I MEAN, I'M HAPPY TO HAVE THIS ADMITTED

        17  SUBJECT TO A MOTION TO STRIKE.  AND IF IT'S NOT APPARENT

        18  AFTER THIS EXAMINATION, THE GOVERNMENT CAN MOVE.

        19           THE COURT:  WELL, LET ME WORK BACKWARDS ON THIS.

        20  WHAT IS YOUR POINT GOING TO BE?  THAT THE AGREEMENT THAT

        21  WAS ULTIMATELY REACHED WAS MORE FAVORABLE TO IBM THAN

        22  EARLIER DRAFTS?  IS THAT THE IDEA?

        23           MR. PEPPERMAN:  I THINK I'M GOING TO WORK UP TO

        24  WHAT I BELIEVE TO BE THE FINAL DRAFT, AND THAT WAS THE

        25  PROPOSAL THAT WAS REVIEWED BY IBM MANAGEMENT, AND THAT
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         1  THAT PROPOSAL DID NOT INCLUDE REQUIREMENT TO REDUCE, DROP

         2  OR ELIMINATE OS/2.

         3           THE COURT:  OKAY.  GO AHEAD.  I THINK I FOLLOW

         4  YOUR REASONING.

         5  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

         6  Q.   ARE YOU ON THE THIRD PAGE OF DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT

         7  2626, SIR?

         8  A.   YES, I AM.

         9  Q.   IF YOU LOOK AT THE THIRD BULLET UP FROM THE BOTTOM,

        10  IT READS, "IBM WILL BE COMMITTED TO PROMOTE MICROSOFT

        11  SOFTWARE PLATFORMS, E.G., WFW, WINDOWS NT, CHICAGO, ET

        12  CETERA, BUT NOT EXCLUSIVE TO PRODUCTS OFFERED BY OTHER

        13  DIVISIONS OF IBM."

        14           DID YOU SEE THAT?

        15  A.   I SEE IT.

        16  Q.   FIRST, IS WFW AN ABBREVIATION FOR WINDOWS FOR

        17  WORKGROUP?

        18  A.   YES, IT IS.

        19  Q.   AND CHICAGO IS THE CODE NAME FOR WINDOWS 95; CORRECT?

        20  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        21  Q.   AND OS/2 WOULD BE A PRODUCT OFFERED BY ANOTHER

        22  DIVISION OF IBM; CORRECT?

        23  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        24  Q.   HAVE YOU SEEN THIS DOCUMENT BEFORE?

        25  A.   NO, I HAVE NOT.
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         1  Q.   WELL, THIS DOCUMENT NO LONGER CONTAINS THE MODIFIER

         2  TO PROMOTE THE WORD "PRIMARILY"; CORRECT?

         3  A.   DOES NOT READ "PRIMARILY."

         4  Q.   AND THIS DOCUMENT EXPRESSLY PROVIDES THAT IBM'S

         5  OBLIGATIONS ARE NOT EXCLUSIVE TO PRODUCTS OFFERED BY OTHER

         6  DIVISIONS OF IBM; CORRECT?

         7  A.   I CAN'T SAY THE DOCUMENT--THE SHEET THAT I'M READING

         8  DOES NOT SAY "PRIMARILY."

         9  Q.   WELL, YOU WOULD AGREE, SIR, THAT THIS BULLET RIGHT

        10  HERE WOULD NOT IMPOSE AN OBLIGATION ON IBM TO DROP OR

        11  ELIMINATE OS/2; CORRECT?

        12  A.   THAT BULLET ON THIS PAGE DOES NOT READ "PRIMARILY,"

        13  THAT'S CORRECT.

        14  Q.   AND YOUR TESTIMONY IS THAT THAT REQUIREMENT WAS

        15  SOMETHING THAT MICROSOFT CONVEYED TO MR. DUBINSKY

        16  VERBALLY; CORRECT?

        17  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        18  Q.   NOW, IN SEPTEMBER OF 1994, IBM INFORMED MICROSOFT,

        19  DIDN'T IT, THAT BRUCE CLAFLIN AND TONY SANTELLI LIKED THE

        20  PROPOSED FRAMEWORK THAT HAD BEEN NEGOTIATED AND THAT RICK

        21  THOMANN OF IBM WAS BEHIND IT; CORRECT?

        22  A.   REPEAT THAT AGAIN, PLEASE.

        23  Q.   SURE.

        24           IN SEPTEMBER OF 1994, IBM INFORMED MICROSOFT THAT

        25  BRUCE CLAFLIN OF IBM AND TONY SANTELLI OF IBM LIKED THE
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         1  PROPOSED FRAMEWORK AND THAT RICK THOMANN OF IBM WAS BEHIND

         2  IT; CORRECT?

         3  A.   WHO AT IBM INFORMED THOMANN AND CLAFLIN THAT THOMANN

         4  AND CLAFLIN LIKED IT?

         5  Q.   I GUESS YOUR TESTIMONY IS THAT YOU'RE NOT AWARE OF

         6  THAT HAVING HAPPENED; CORRECT?

         7  A.   YOUR QUESTION DOESN'T MAKE SENSE TO ME.

         8           MR. MALONE:  OBJECTION, YOUR HONOR.  THE WITNESS

         9  DIDN'T UNDERSTAND THE QUESTION, AND HE'S ASKING FOR A

        10  CLARIFICATION.

        11           MR. PEPPERMAN:  OKAY.  LET ME TRY TO CLARIFY IT.

        12  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

        13  Q.   IN SEPTEMBER OF 1994, SOMEONE FROM IBM INFORMED

        14  SOMEONE FROM MICROSOFT THAT BRUCE CLAFLIN OF IBM AND TONY

        15  SANTELLI OF IBM LIKED THE PROPOSED FRAMEWORK THAT HAD BEEN

        16  NEGOTIATED AND THAT RICK THOMANN OF IBM WAS BEHIND IT; ARE

        17  YOU AWARE OF THAT, SIR?

        18  A.   SOMEONE--SOMEONE--I CAN'T SAY I AM.

        19  Q.   LET ME MARK A DOCUMENT AND SEE IF THAT HELPS.

        20           MR. PEPPERMAN:  I ASK THAT THE WITNESS BE SHOWN,

        21  AND I OFFER INTO EVIDENCE, DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2627.  IT

        22  CONSISTS OF AN INTERNAL MICROSOFT E-MAIL AND AN ATTACHED

        23  RED-LINED VERSION OF A DOCUMENT ENTITLED "IBM/MICROSOFT

        24  ALLIANCE PROPOSAL."  IT BEARS THE BATES NUMBERS MX 6202703

        25  THROUGH 17.  I OFFER THIS DOCUMENT.
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         1           MR. MALONE:  NO OBJECTION.

         2           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  DEFENDANT'S 2627 IS

         3  ADMITTED.

         4                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 2627 WAS

         5                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

         6  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

         7  Q.   MR. NORRIS, JUST TO ORIENT YOU AS YOU'RE LOOKING AT

         8  THIS DOCUMENT, I'M GOING TO ASK YOU A QUESTION ABOUT THE

         9  E-MAIL ON THE FIRST PAGE, AND ABOUT THE BULLET POINTS

        10  APPEARING ON THE PAGE MX 6202707, AND THAT'S THE FOURTH

        11  PAGE OF THE RED-LINE AGREEMENT.

        12           MR. PEPPERMAN:  AND YOUR HONOR, IF I CAN CLARIFY

        13  FOR THE COURT AND FOR THE RECORD, A PROBLEM WITH THE

        14  DATING DOWN AT THE BOTTOM OF THIS DOCUMENT, WHILE THE

        15  WITNESS IS REVIEWING IT, THAT THIS IS ONE OF THOSE

        16  DOCUMENTS I'M TOLD WHERE WHENEVER IT'S OPENED UP AND

        17  PRINTED OUT, IT DOESN'T AUTOMATICALLY DATE IT.  AND THE

        18  DATE THERE, 3/22/95, IS THE DATE IT WAS PRINTED OUT AND

        19  PRODUCED TO THE GOVERNMENT EITHER IN RESPONSE TO THE MSN

        20  INVESTIGATION OR THE INTUIT INVESTIGATION.  I GUESS IN

        21  1994--EXCUSE ME?--1995, WHEN IT WAS PRINTED OUT, MARCH

        22  22ND, 1995, THAT WOULD HAVE BEEN THE INTUIT INVESTIGATION.

        23  AUTOMATIC REDATING OF THESE DOCUMENTS CAN BE CONFUSING.

        24           THE COURT:  WELL, WHAT IS YOUR QUESTION TO THIS

        25  WITNESS WHO APPARENTLY WAS NOT A RECIPIENT OF THIS E-MAIL?
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         1           MR. PEPPERMAN:  I'M GIVING HIM AN OPPORTUNITY TO

         2  REVIEW THE DOCUMENT, AND THEN I WILL ASK MY QUESTION, SIR.

         3           THE WITNESS:  I HAVEN'T READ THE WHOLE DOCUMENT,

         4  BUT DO YOU WANT ME TO FOCUS ON A PARTICULAR AREA?  I WILL

         5  READ THE WHOLE THING, IF YOU LIKE.

         6  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

         7  Q.   NO.  I THINK FOR PURPOSES OF ANSWERING MY QUESTION,

         8  IF YOU HAD AN OPPORTUNITY TO LOOK AT E-MAIL AND THE

         9  BULLETS POINT ON THE FOURTH PAGE OF THE AGREEMENT, I WILL

        10  POINT OUT TO YOU THE TWO SPECIFIC BULLETS I WANT TO ASK

        11  YOU QUESTIONS ABOUT, AND THOSE ARE THE ONE THAT'S THIRD UP

        12  FROM THE BOTTOM AND THE ONE THAT IS TWO ABOVE THAT.

        13  A.   LET ME SEE IF I COULD ANSWER YOUR QUESTION IN THE

        14  CONTEXT OF THOSE.

        15  Q.   I HAVEN'T ASKED MY QUESTION YET.

        16           BUT MY FIRST QUESTION, SIR, IS, LOOKING AT THE

        17  FIRST PAGE OF THIS DOCUMENT, WHICH IS THE E-MAIL, THE

        18  SECOND E-MAIL THERE, WHICH IS FROM JOACHIM KEMPIN OF

        19  MICROSOFT TO BILL GATES, MIKE MAPLES, PAUL MARITZ AND

        20  STEVE BALLMER, AND IT'S DATED TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 13TH,

        21  1994.

        22           BY THE WAY--MR. KEMPIN--YOU NEVER HAD ANY

        23  ONE-ON-ONE DISCUSSIONS WITH MR. KEMPIN BEFORE, HAVE YOU?

        24  A.   NO.  JUST CONFERENCE CALLS AND GROUP MEETINGS.

        25  Q.   NOW, THE RE: LINE HERE IS "SUBJECT: FINAL IBM
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         1  ALLIANCE PROPOSAL, HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL, IMPROVED VERSION."

         2  THEN THE FIRST THREE SENTENCES OF THE E-MAIL READ, "THIS

         3  IS AS FAR AS WE'VE COME WITH IBM.  SANTELLI AND CLAFLIN

         4  LIKE IT, AND THOMANN IS BEHIND IT.  THIS WILL GET REVIEWED

         5  IN THEIR MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE."

         6           FIRST, AT SOME POINT MR. SANTELLI WAS EITHER YOUR

         7  BOSS'S BOSS OR YOUR BOSS'S BOSS'S BOSS; CORRECT?

         8  A.   TONY WAS OZZIE'S BOSS, SO MY BOSS'S BOSS, YES.

         9  Q.   AND MR. CLAFLIN ALSO WAS AT ONE TIME YOUR BOSS'S

        10  BOSS; IS THAT CORRECT?

        11  A.   YES.

        12  Q.   AND MR. THOMANN WAS, IN 1994-95, A SENIOR VICE

        13  PRESIDENT OR AN EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT OF IBM; CORRECT?

        14  A.   SENIOR VICE PRESIDENT AND GROUP EXECUTIVE.

        15  Q.   NOW, WHEN YOU RECEIVED YOUR REVIEW OF THE EVENTS IN

        16  1994 IN MARCH OF '95, WHEN YOU TOOK OVER YOUR NEW

        17  POSITION, DID YOU LEARN THAT BRUCE CLAFLIN AND TONY

        18  SANTELLI LIKED THE ALLIANCE PROPOSAL THAT HAD BEEN

        19  NEGOTIATED WITH MICROSOFT AND THAT RICK THOMANN WAS BEHIND

        20  IT?

        21  A.   NO.

        22           IN FACT, DEAN'S CHARTS CONTRADICT IT.  IT SAYS

        23  THAT IBM STARTS THE PROCESS TO RETHINK STRATEGIC

        24  RELATIONSHIPS, AND THE PROCESS TOOK OVER THREE MONTHS, AND

        25  NO NEWS TO MICROSOFT.  HOW COULD THEY SAY THEY LIKED IT IN
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         1  SEPTEMBER?

         2  Q.   WE WILL GO ON TO THAT.  THE ANSWER TO MY QUESTION IS:

         3  YOU DID NOT HEAR THAT WHEN YOU RECEIVED YOUR REVIEW IN

         4  MARCH OF '95; CORRECT?

         5  A.   DID NOT HEAR WHAT?

         6  Q.   THAT THESE THREE INDIVIDUALS IDENTIFIED IN THIS

         7  MICROSOFT E-MAIL THAT MR. SANTELLI AND MR. CLAFLIN LIKED

         8  THE PROPOSAL, AND THAT MR. THOMANN WAS BEHIND IT.

         9  A.   I NEED YOU TO REPEAT THAT ONE MORE TIME.  I'M SORRY.

        10  Q.   DID YOU NOT HEAR, SIR, IN MARCH OF '95, WHEN YOU

        11  RECEIVED YOUR REVIEW OF EVENTS IN 1994 THAT MR. SANTELLI

        12  AND MR. CLAFLIN LIKED THE PROPOSAL THAT HAD BEEN

        13  NEGOTIATED WITH MICROSOFT AND THAT MR. THOMANN WAS BEHIND

        14  IT?

        15  A.   I CAN'T SAY THAT I HEARD IT EXACTLY LIKE THAT, NO.

        16  Q.   BUT DID YOU HEAR IT GENERALLY LIKE THAT, SIR?

        17  A.   NO.  WHAT I HEARD WAS THAT WE HAD THE MEETING IN THE

        18  AUGUST 1994 TIME FRAME AND THAT IT WAS AGREED THAT WE

        19  WOULD MOVE FORWARD AND LOOK AT A FRAMEWORK, AND THAT BABER

        20  AND DUBINSKY WORKED ON THE FRAMEWORK DOCUMENT, AND THAT

        21  THAT DOCUMENT AND WHATEVER WAS GOING TO BE REVIEWED WOULD

        22  BE AGREED UPON SOMETIME BETWEEN THEN AND FALL COMDEX.

        23           AND GOING THROUGH THE REVIEW WITH DUBINSKY AT

        24  THIS POINT IN TIME, DEAN SAID THAT THINGS TURNED--IBM

        25  DECIDED THAT IT WOULD BE OS/2 FIRST--IBM FIRST INITIATIVE,
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         1  AND THAT THERE WOULD BE NO FRONTLINE PARTNERSHIP.

         2  Q.   WE ARE GOING TO GET TO THE SUBSEQUENT EVENTS.  IF I

         3  COULD ASK YOU TO TURN, SIR, TO THE FOURTH PAGE OF THE

         4  AGREEMENT WHICH IS ATTACHED TO THE E-MAIL.

         5  A.   OKAY.

         6  Q.   THIS IS THE PAGE THAT HAS THE PRODUCTION NUMBER MX

         7  6202707?

         8  A.   MARKETING RULES OF ENGAGEMENT?

         9  Q.   YES.

        10           THE COURT:  MR. PEPPERMAN, DON'T REFER TO IT AS

        11  AN AGREEMENT, YET.

        12           MR. PEPPERMAN:  I'M SORRY, AS PROPOSAL.

        13           THE COURT:  YOU MISSTATE THE CHARACTER OF THE

        14  DOCUMENT.  IT'S AN IBM/MICROSOFT ALLIANCE PROPOSAL WHICH,

        15  APPARENTLY, WAS A WORK PRODUCT OF MICROSOFT.

        16           MR. PEPPERMAN:  I BELIEVE THE WITNESS HAS

        17  TESTIFIED THAT MR. DUBINSKY OF IBM AND MR. BABER OF

        18  MICROSOFT BOTH WORKED ON THE DOCUMENT, AND MY REFERENCE TO

        19  AS AN AGREEMENT--

        20           THE COURT:  NOT THIS ONE.  SOME OTHER FRAMEWORK

        21  DOCUMENT, I THINK.

        22           OR IS THIS THE JOINT WORK PRODUCT OF BABER AND

        23  DUBINSKY?

        24           THE WITNESS:  I DIDN'T SEE THIS ONE, YOUR HONOR.

        25  THIS IS THE ONE THAT I SAW AND UNDERSTOOD TO BE THE JOINT
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         1  WORK PRODUCT.

         2           THE COURT:  OKAY.

         3  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

         4  Q.   SIR, JUST TO ASK THIS QUESTION, WOULD IT MAKE SENSE

         5  TO YOU THAT MR. BABER AND MR. DUBINSKY WOULD WORK ON THE

         6  FIRST AGREEMENT THAT WE LOOKED AT THAT REQUIRED IBM TO

         7  PRIMARILY PROMOTE MICROSOFT PLATFORM SOFTWARE, AND THEN

         8  MICROSOFT, ON ITS OWN, UNILATERALLY WOULD CREATE TWO

         9  SUBSEQUENT DRAFTS THAT GAVE IBM ADDITIONAL--MORE

        10  FLEXIBILITY THAN THAT?

        11  A.   THAT MICROSOFT WOULD ON ITS OWN UNILATERALLY GIVE IBM

        12  MORE FLEXIBILITY?  I DON'T THINK SO, WITHOUT US TELLING

        13  YOU WE WEREN'T GOING TO DO SOMETHING THAT WAS IN THE

        14  ORIGINAL DOCUMENT.

        15  Q.   WELL, IT WOULD SEEM TO MAKE SENSE THAT IF THE

        16  DOCUMENT GAVE IBM ADDITIONAL FLEXIBILITY AS IT INVOLVED,

        17  THAT THAT WOULD BE--THAT THAT WOULD BE AS A RESULT OF

        18  IBM'S HARD NEGOTIATING; CORRECT?

        19  A.   I WOULD CERTAINLY THINK THAT THERE WOULD BE TO'S AND

        20  FROM'S BETWEEN BABER AND DUBINSKY IF THEY WERE WORKING ON

        21  DOCUMENTS.

        22  Q.   OKAY.  AND THE FIRST SENTENCE OF MR. KEMPIN'S E-MAIL

        23  ON THE FIRST PAGE OF THIS DOCUMENT READS, "THIS IS AS FAR

        24  AS WE'VE COME WITH IBM"; CORRECT?

        25  A.   IT DOES READ THAT, YES.
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         1  Q.   NOW, LOOKING AT THE FOURTH PAGE OF THE ALLIANCE

         2  PROPOSAL THAT WE'RE LOOKING AT NOW, THIRD BULLET UP FROM

         3  THE BOTTOM.

         4  A.   BATES 1020630?

         5  Q.   YES.  THE ONE THAT JUST HAS THE M PREFIX.

         6  A.   YES.

         7  Q.   THIRD BULLET UP FROM THE BOTTOM, WHICH READS, "IBM

         8  WILL PROMOTE MICROSOFT SOFTWARE PLATFORMS (EXAMPLE, WFW,

         9  WINDOWS NT, CHICAGO, ET CETERA) RUNNING ON IBM SYSTEMS,

        10  BUT NOT EXCLUSIVE TO PRODUCTS OFFERED BY OTHER DIVISIONS

        11  OF IBM, AFFILIATES OR VENTURES OF IBM."

        12           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        13  A.   I DO.

        14  Q.   AND THE WORDS AFFILIATES OR VENTURES OF IBM ARE

        15  UNDERLINED; CORRECT?

        16  A.   YES.

        17  Q.   CONSISTENT WITH YOUR EXPERIENCE, DOES THAT SUGGEST TO

        18  YOU THAT THOSE WORDS WERE ADDED FROM A PRIOR DRAFT OF THIS

        19  DOCUMENT, AND THE RED-LINING MECHANISM IS SHOWING THE

        20  ADDITIONAL LANGUAGE?

        21  A.   HAVING NOT SEEN THIS DOCUMENT, AND NOT KNOWING FOR

        22  SURE THAT IT WENT BACK AND FORTH IN NORMAL RED-LINE

        23  NEGOTIATIONS, YES, YOU--THE PROPOSER SENDS AN ORIGINAL.

        24  WE STRIKE THE LANGUAGE THAT WE DON'T PREFER, AND WE SEND

        25  THAT COPY BACK, UNDERLINING WHAT WE WANTED AS THE NEW
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         1  WRITING.  BUT I DON'T KNOW THAT THIS IS THE DOCUMENT.

         2  I'VE NEVER SEEN IT.

         3  Q.   YOU JUST KNOW WHAT MR. DUBINSKY, MS. ROMERO AND

         4  MR. AVALLON HAD TOLD YOU ABOUT THE NEGOTIATIONS OF '94;

         5  CORRECT?

         6  A.   THAT'S CORRECT, AND WHAT I SAW IN THIS PARTICULAR

         7  DRAFT HERE.

         8  Q.   NOW, THIS BULLET POINT OF THIS PROPOSAL THAT WE'RE

         9  LOOKING AT, YOU AGREE, DON'T YOU, SIR, THAT THIS BULLET

        10  POINT DOES NOT REQUIRE IBM TO DROP OR ELIMINATE OS/2;

        11  CORRECT?

        12  A.   CERTAINLY APPEARS THAT WAY, THAT'S CORRECT.

        13  Q.   AND, IN FACT, IT EXPRESSLY SAYS THAT IBM'S

        14  OBLIGATIONS TO PROMOTE MICROSOFT'S PLATFORM SOFTWARE WOULD

        15  BE NOT EXCLUSIVE TO PRODUCTS OFFERED BY OTHER DIVISIONS,

        16  AFFILIATES OR VENTURES OF IBM; CORRECT?

        17  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        18  Q.   IF YOU COULD LOOK, SIR, AT THREE BULLETS UP FROM

        19  THERE, IT'S THE SIXTH BULLET DOWN, WHICH READS, "IBM AND

        20  MICROSOFT WILL RUN ADS WHICH REFERENCE EACH OTHER'S

        21  PRODUCTS IN A FAVORABLE BUT NONEXCLUSIONARY WAY."

        22           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        23  A.   YES, I DO.

        24  Q.   AND YOU AGREE THAT THAT BULLET POINT WOULD REQUIRE

        25  IBM TO EXCLUSIVELY PROMOTE MICROSOFT PRODUCTS; CORRECT?

                                                           43

         1  A.   I AGREE.

         2  Q.   AGAIN, IT EXPRESSLY STATES TO THE CONTRARY, DOESN'T

         3  IT?

         4  A.   SURE DOES.

         5  Q.   NOW, LET'S LOOK BACK AT DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2624, THE

         6  PAGE THAT BEARS THE BATES NUMBERS 16332.  IT WAS THE PAGE

         7  WE WERE LOOKING AT BEFORE.

         8           MR. MALONE:  YOUR HONOR, MIGHT I INQUIRE THROUGH

         9  THE COURT WHETHER COUNSEL IS FINISHED WITH 2626 AND 27?

        10           MR. PEPPERMAN:  I AM.

        11           MR. MALONE:  YOUR HONOR, AT THIS TIME I WOULD

        12  ACCEPT MR. PEPPERMAN'S PREVIOUS INVITATION TO MOVE TO

        13  STRIKE.  THE WITNESS TESTIFIED HE NEVER SAW THEM AND

        14  DOESN'T EVEN KNOW IF THEY WENT BACK AND FORTH.  AT THIS

        15  POINT I DON'T THINK THERE IS ANY FOUNDATION--

        16           THE COURT:  WELL, I THINK HE SAID HE'S GOING TO

        17  PROCEED TO A THIRD DOCUMENT, WHICH, I GATHER, IS GOING TO

        18  BE AN EXECUTED CONTRACT; IS THAT RIGHT?

        19           MR. PEPPERMAN:  YOUR HONOR, I THINK THAT THE

        20  FACTS WILL SHOW, AS I THINK MR. NORRIS TESTIFIED

        21  YESTERDAY, THAT IBM ULTIMATELY REJECTED THE PROPOSAL, SO

        22  THERE IS NO EXECUTED CONTRACT.  THESE ARE, MY

        23  UNDERSTANDING, THE THREE DRAFTS OF THE CONTRACT.  I WENT

        24  THROUGH THEM CHRONOLOGICALLY FROM FIRST TO THIRD.  THE

        25  COVER E-MAIL AND THE--
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         1           THE COURT:  WELL, IS THERE A GOVERNMENT EXHIBIT

         2  WHICH WAS THE FINAL PRODUCT OF THE NEGOTIATIONS WHICH IBM

         3  REJECTED PURSUANT TO MR. NORRIS'S TESTIMONY?

         4           MR. PEPPERMAN:  WHEN THE GOVERNMENT WENT THROUGH

         5  THIS SUBJECT WITH MR. NORRIS, IT DID NOT MARK ANY OF THE

         6  AGREEMENTS.  IT JUST ELICITED GENERAL TESTIMONY, AND I

         7  HAVE BEEN TRYING TO BRING THE TESTIMONY BACK TO THE ACTUAL

         8  DOCUMENTS TO COMPARE THEM WITH MR. NORRIS'S TESTIMONY.

         9           THE COURT:  THE PROBLEM IS WE DON'T HAVE ANYTHING

        10  TO TIE THESE TWO DOCUMENTS TO ANYTHING ELSE.

        11           MR. PEPPERMAN:  WELL, YOUR HONOR, MICROSOFT WOULD

        12  BE HAPPY DURING ITS PHASE OF THE REBUTTAL TO BRING A

        13  WITNESS IN WHO COULD TIE THESE DOCUMENTS IN.

        14           THE COURT:  WHO IS GOING TO REPRESENT TO ME WHAT

        15  THE WITNESS WOULD SAY?

        16           MR. PEPPERMAN:  THE WITNESS WOULD SAY, AND THE

        17  WITNESS COULD BE EITHER MARK BABER OR JOACHIM KEMPIN THAT

        18  THE FIRST DOCUMENT WE LOOKED AT WAS THE FIRST DRAFT THAT

        19  WAS PRESENTED TO IBM IN THE AUGUST 1994 CHICAGO MEETING,

        20  THAT SUBSEQUENT TO THAT MEETING, MR. BABER AND

        21  MR. DUBINSKY NEGOTIATED THE AGREEMENT, AND THAT THE SECOND

        22  DRAFT WAS THE SECOND DRAFT OF THE DOCUMENT, THE SECOND

        23  PROPOSAL, AND THAT THE FINAL PROPOSAL IS THE ONE THAT, AS

        24  IT STATES IN MR. KEMPIN'S E-MAIL IN THE COVER PAGE, THAT

        25  THIS IS THE FINAL PROPOSAL THAT WAS THEN REVIEWED BY THE
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         1  IBM EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT, BY PEOPLE OUTSIDE OF THE PC

         2  COMPANY.  AND MICROSOFT IS HAPPY TO PUT EITHER MR. BABER

         3  OR MR. KEMPIN ON THE STAND TO ESTABLISH THAT FOUNDATION.

         4           THE COURT:  WELL, IF YOU'RE GOING TO CALL

         5  MR. KEMPIN OR MR. BABER, THERE IS A LOT MORE THEY'RE GOING

         6  TO HAVE TO TESTIFY BESIDES WHO WROTE THESE DOCUMENTS.

         7           MR. PEPPERMAN:  YOUR HONOR, AS THE COURT CAN

         8  APPRECIATE, WHEN DEALING WITH A LIMITED NUMBER OF

         9  WITNESSES, IT'S DIFFICULT ALWAYS TO ESTABLISH FOUNDATION,

        10  ESPECIALLY THROUGH A HOSTILE WITNESS, YOUR HONOR.

        11           THE COURT:  MOTION TO STRIKE IS DENIED.

        12           GO AHEAD.

        13  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

        14  Q.   NOW, IF YOU COULD, SIR, GO TO PAGE 16332 AND IN

        15  EXHIBIT 2624.

        16  A.   YES.

        17           THE COURT:  WHAT'S YOUR PAGE NUMBER?

        18           MR. PEPPERMAN:  THAT'S 16332.  THAT'S THE PAGE WE

        19  WERE LOOKING AT BEFORE THAT HAS "IBM/MICROSOFT

        20  RELATIONSHIP OVERVIEW" AT THE TOP.

        21           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

        22  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

        23  Q.   THE FOURTH BULLET ON THIS PAGE READS, "FRAMEWORK

        24  REVIEWED WITH IBM EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT."

        25           AND IT'S CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING, SIR,

                                                           46

         1  THAT THE FRAMEWORK WAS, IN FACT, REVIEWED WITH IBM

         2  EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT?

         3  A.   THAT'S MY UNDERSTANDING, YES.

         4  Q.   AND THE SECOND ENTRY UNDER THAT BULLET READS, "REVIEW

         5  PROCESS TOOK OVER THREE MONTHS."

         6           WHEN YOU WERE BRIEFED OF THESE EVENTS IN 1995,

         7  DID YOU LEARN THAT IBM'S REVIEW OF THE PROPOSED ALLIANCE

         8  TOOK SEVERAL MONTHS?

         9  A.   THAT'S CONSISTENT, YES.

        10  Q.   AND THE ENTRY UNDERNEATH THAT READS, QUOTE, NO NEWS

        11  TO MICROSOFT DURING THE REVIEW PROCESS.

        12           IS THAT ALSO CONSISTENT WITH YOUR UNDERSTANDING

        13  THAT MICROSOFT DID NOT RECEIVE ANY NEWS OF IBM'S INTERNAL

        14  REVIEW OF THE PROPOSED ALLIANCE WHILE THAT REVIEW WAS

        15  ONGOING?

        16  A.   I DID QUESTION DUBINSKY ABOUT THE NO NEWS, ET AL.,

        17  AND THE ABSOLUTENESS OF THAT.  MY UNDERSTANDING IS THAT

        18  BABER AND DUBINSKY WERE BACK AND FORTH IN DISCUSSIONS.  I

        19  DON'T KNOW WHETHER BABER DISCUSSED IT WITH KEMPIN.  I DO

        20  KNOW THAT WHAT DUBINSKY TOLD ME IS HE AND BABER WERE

        21  CERTAINLY IN DISCUSSIONS, WHICH IS WHY I QUESTIONED THE

        22  DOCUMENT THAT KEMPIN SAID CLAFLIN, SANTELLI AND THOMANN

        23  WERE BEHIND IT IF THERE WAS NO NEWS.

        24  Q.   OKAY.  WELL, OTHER THAN, PERHAPS, SOME DISCUSSIONS

        25  BETWEEN MR. BABER AND MR. DUBINSKY, ARE YOU AWARE OF ANY
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         1  OTHER DISCUSSIONS BETWEEN MICROSOFT AND IBM ABOUT THE

         2  PROPOSED ALLIANCE BETWEEN SEPTEMBER 13TH, 1994, AND

         3  NOVEMBER 16TH, 1994?

         4  A.   NO.

         5  Q.   IF YOU COULD, PLEASE, TURN TO THE NEXT PAGE OF THIS

         6  DOCUMENT.

         7  A.   IBM FIRST INITIATIVE?

         8  Q.   YES.

         9  A.   YES.

        10  Q.   AND IN PARTICULAR, THE FIRST BULLET AT THE TOP OF THE

        11  PAGE.

        12           NOW, THE FIRST BULLET READS, "IBM AND MICROSOFT

        13  MET AT FALL COMDEX 1994."

        14           WHAT IS COMDEX, SIR?  I BELIEVE YOU TOUCHED ON

        15  THAT YESTERDAY.

        16  A.   I BELIEVE IT'S STILL TERMED "COMPUTER DATA EXCHANGE"

        17  OR "COMPUTER DATA EXPOSITION."  IT'S ONE OF THE LARGEST PC

        18  EXHIBITIONS IN THE WORLD, HELD EACH NOVEMBER, AND ALSO IN

        19  THE SPRING SOMEWHERE ELSE.

        20  Q.   AND THE ENTRY UNDERNEATH THAT READS, "THOMANN,

        21  SANTELLI, AND CLAFLIN AND MICROSOFT, GATES AND KEMPIN," IS

        22  IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT RICK THOMANN, TONY SANTELLI AND

        23  BRUCE CLAFLIN OF IBM MET WITH BILL GATES AND JOACHIM

        24  KEMPIN OF MICROSOFT AT THE FALL COMDEX IN 1994 TO DISCUSS

        25  THE PROPOSED ALLIANCE?
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         1  A.   YES.

         2  Q.   AND THE FALL COMDEX 1994, THAT TOOK PLACE IN NOVEMBER

         3  OF 1994; CORRECT?

         4  A.   YES.

         5  Q.   MORE SPECIFICALLY, ON NOVEMBER 16TH, 1994?

         6  A.   I DON'T REMEMBER THE EXACT DATE.  IT WAS NOVEMBER,

         7  FOR SURE.

         8  Q.   YOU'RE PRETTY GOOD WITH DATES THE LAST TIME AROUND.

         9  THAT'S WHY I ASKED.

        10  A.   SOME I REMEMBER.  SOME I DON'T.

        11  Q.   ARE YOU AWARE THAT THE MEETING TOOK PLACE AT THE LAS

        12  VEGAS HILTON AT COMDEX?

        13  A.   I DON'T REMEMBER THE EXACT PLACE.

        14  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, IN THE END, AFTER THEIR REVIEW, THE IBM

        15  CORPORATE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ENDED UP REJECTING THE

        16  PROPOSED ALLIANCE BETWEEN IBM AND MICROSOFT; CORRECT?

        17  A.   YOU SHOWED ME A DOCUMENT IN THE DEPOSITION--I THINK

        18  WE DISCUSSED THAT--I MAY HAVE TO GO BACK AND LOOK AT

        19  IT--THAT SHOWED CEC.  YOU WERE ASKING ABOUT EXECUTIVE

        20  MANAGEMENT.  I DO KNOW EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT REJECTED THE

        21  PROPOSAL.

        22  Q.   SINCE YOU BROUGHT IT UP, LET'S LOOK AT THE DOCUMENT.

        23           MR. PEPPERMAN:  I'M GOING TO ASK THAT THE WITNESS

        24  BE SHOWN, AND I OFFER INTO EVIDENCE, DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT

        25  2628.  IT'S AN E-MAIL FROM DEAN DUBINSKY TO BRUCE CLAFLIN,
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         1  BOTH IBM EMPLOYEES, DATED APRIL 6TH, 1995, AND ENTITLED

         2  "LETTER TO GERSTNER."

         3           MR. MALONE:  NO OBJECTION.

         4           THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2628 IS ADMITTED.

         5                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 2628 WAS

         6                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

         7  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

         8  Q.   SIR, IS THIS THE DOCUMENT YOU WERE REFERRING TO

         9  EARLIER, THE ONE THAT I SHOWED YOU DURING YOUR DEPOSITION?

        10  A.   YES.

        11  Q.   AND THE TOP OF THE DOCUMENT IS AN E-MAIL FROM DEAN

        12  DUBINSKY TO SEVERAL OTHER PEOPLE AT IBM; CORRECT?

        13  A.   TO BRUCE CLAFLIN, COPYING HARRY NICOL AND SEVERAL

        14  OTHER PEOPLE, YES.

        15  Q.   AND THE E-MAIL IS DATED APRIL 6TH, 1995; CORRECT?

        16  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        17  Q.   AND THAT'S ABOUT THE TIME THAT MR. DUBINSKY AND

        18  OTHERS GAVE YOU YOUR REVIEW OF THE EVENTS IN 1994;

        19  CORRECT?

        20  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        21  Q.   NOW, ATTACHMENTS TO THIS E-MAIL, OR PART OF THIS

        22  E-MAIL, IS A LETTER THAT MR. DUBINSKY DRAFTED WHICH WOULD

        23  BE SENT FROM RICK THOMANN TO LOU GERSTNER; CORRECT?

        24  A.   THAT'S WHAT IT SAYS.  "ATTACHED YOU WILL FIND A

        25  DRAFT," YES.
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         1  Q.   SO, THIS WAS A LETTER FROM EXECUTIVE VICE PRESIDENT

         2  OF IBM UP TO MR. GERSTNER, THE CEO OF IBM.  THAT'S WHAT

         3  IT'S PROPOSED TO BE; CORRECT?

         4  A.   YES, IT IS A PROPOSED LETTER TO BE SENT FROM RICK

         5  THOMANN TO LOU GERSTNER, DRAFTED BY DEAN DUBINSKY.

         6  Q.   OKAY.  AND UNDER THE HEADING "BACKGROUND," THE FIRST

         7  PARAGRAPH STATES, "LAST SUMMER, AFTER MY MEETING WITH BILL

         8  GATES, BRUCE CLAFLIN AND TONY SANTELLI MET WITH

         9  MICROSOFT'S JOACHIM KEMPIN, SENIOR VP OF OEM SALES.  THE

        10  OUTPUT OF THIS MEETING WAS A DOCUMENT DEFINING THE

        11  GUIDELINES FOR A POTENTIAL ALLIANCE BETWEEN IBM AND

        12  MICROSOFT.  THIS INITIATIVE WAS NOT APPROVED BY THE IBM

        13  CEC."

        14           NOW, THE DOCUMENT REFERRED TO IN THAT PARAGRAPH,

        15  SIR, IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT THAT DOCUMENT IS THE

        16  FRAMEWORK DOCUMENT WE HAVE BEEN TALKING ABOUT?

        17  A.   I DON'T KNOW WHICH ONE THEY WERE REFERRING TO.  YOU

        18  SHOWED ME TWO DIFFERENT ONES.

        19  Q.   BUT YOU REFERRED--WHEN I ASKED YOU ABOUT THE

        20  REFERENCE TO A FRAMEWORK DOCUMENT IN DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT

        21  2624, YOU SAID YOU TESTIFIED THAT THE FRAMEWORK DOCUMENT

        22  SET OUT THE GUIDELINES FOR THE PROPOSED MICROSOFT/IBM

        23  ALLIANCE; CORRECT?

        24  A.   YES.

        25  Q.   AND THE DOCUMENT REFERRED TO HERE IS REFERRED TO AS A
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         1  DOCUMENT THAT DEFINES THE GUIDELINES FOR A POTENTIAL

         2  ALLIANCE BETWEEN IBM AND MICROSOFT; CORRECT?

         3  A.   YES, THAT'S CORRECT.  YOU SHOWED ME TWO, AND I DON'T

         4  KNOW WHICH ONE IT'S REFERRING TO, THOUGH.

         5  Q.   YOU AGREE WITH ME, SIR, THAT THE DOCUMENT DESCRIBED

         6  IN THERE IS THE FRAMEWORK DOCUMENT WHICHEVER ENDED UP

         7  BEING; CORRECT?

         8           THE COURT:  I THINK IT MAKES NO DIFFERENCE WHICH

         9  ONE IT WAS.

        10           MR. PEPPERMAN:  WELL--

        11           THE COURT:  HE SAID THERE WAS A FRAMEWORK

        12  DOCUMENT.  THE ONLY ONE THAT HE SAID HE HAS ANY PERSONAL

        13  KNOWLEDGE OF WAS YOUR 2625, I THINK.

        14           THE WITNESS:  THAT'S CORRECT.

        15           THE COURT:  HE CAN ONLY TESTIFY AS TO WHAT HE HAD

        16  PERSONAL KNOWLEDGE ABOUT.

        17           MR. PEPPERMAN:  I WILL REPHRASE MY QUESTIONS WITH

        18  THAT IN MIND, YOUR HONOR.

        19           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.

        20  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

        21  Q.   NEXT SENTENCE OF THIS DOCUMENT READS, "THIS

        22  INITIATIVE WAS NOT APPROVED BY THE CEC."

        23           DO YOU SEE THAT?

        24  A.   YES, I DO.

        25  Q.   NOW, THE IBM CORPORATE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE IS
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         1  REFERRED TO AT IBM AS THE IBM CEC; CORRECT?

         2  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

         3  Q.   WHAT IS THE IBM CORPORATE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE?

         4  A.   THE CEC IS MADE UP OF THE TOP 13 SENIOR-MOST

         5  EXECUTIVES IN THE IBM CORPORATION.

         6  Q.   ARE YOU AWARE OF ANYTHING ELSE AT IBM THAT'S REFERRED

         7  TO AS THE IBM CEC OTHER THAN THE IBM CORPORATE EXECUTIVE

         8  COMMITTEE?

         9  A.   NOT THAT I CAN THINK OF, NO.

        10  Q.   AND THIS DRAFT LETTER THAT MR. DUBINSKY PREPARED WAS

        11  TO BE SENT TO THE CEO OF IBM, LOU GERSTNER; CORRECT?

        12  A.   IF IT WAS, THERE ARE SEVERAL THINGS WRONG WITH IT,

        13  COMING FROM RICK THOMANN GOING TO GERSTNER.

        14  Q.   WELL, ACCEPTING THAT, THIS DRAFT LETTER THAT

        15  MR. DUBINSKY PREPARED TO GO TO THE CEO DOES NOT SAY

        16  ANYTHING ABOUT IBM BEING ASKED TO DROP OR ELIMINATE OS/2

        17  AS PART OF THE PROPOSED ALLIANCE, DOES IT?

        18  A.   NOT THAT I'VE READ IN THIS LETTER, NO.

        19  Q.   AND THE DOCUMENT ALSO DOESN'T SAY ANYTHING ABOUT IBM

        20  BEING REQUIRED TO MARKET AND PROMOTE MICROSOFT PRODUCTS

        21  EXCLUSIVELY AS PART OF THAT ALLIANCE, DOES IT?

        22  A.   NO, THE DOCUMENT THAT WENT FROM DUBINSKY TO THOMANN

        23  DOESN'T SAY ANYTHING ABOUT THAT, BUT WE DON'T KNOW WHETHER

        24  IT WENT TO GERSTNER, DO WE?  ON WHAT THOMANN WROTE TO

        25  GERSTNER.
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         1  Q.   WELL, THE AUTHOR OF THIS DOCUMENT, MR. DUBINSKY, WAS

         2  THE MICROSOFT RELATIONSHIP MANAGER IN 1994; CORRECT?

         3  A.   YES.

         4  Q.   AND HE IS ONE OF THE PRINCIPAL PEOPLE WHO GAVE YOU

         5  YOUR REVIEW OF THE EVENTS IN 1994; CORRECT?

         6  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

         7  Q.   AND HE GAVE THAT REVIEW AT OR AROUND THE SAME TIME HE

         8  PREPARED THIS DRAFT LETTER; CORRECT?

         9  A.   SOMETIME IN MARCH.  I'M NOT COPIED ON THIS LETTER,

        10  SO...

        11  Q.   HE GAVE YOU THE REVIEW SOMETIME IN MARCH OF '95;

        12  CORRECT?

        13  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        14  Q.   AND THIS DRAFT LETTER WAS PREPARED IN APRIL OF '95;

        15  CORRECT?

        16  A.   SAYS APRIL 6TH.

        17  Q.   OKAY.  LET'S TAKE A LOOK BACK AT DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT

        18  2624, THE PAGE WE WERE LOOKING AT BEFORE THAT HAS "IBM

        19  FIRST INITIATIVE" UP TOP, HAS THE BATES NUMBERS 16333.

        20  A.   I'M SORRY?  WHICH ONE?

        21  Q.   WE ARE BACK ON DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2624, AND IT'S THE

        22  DOCUMENT THAT HAS THE "IBM FIRST INITIATIVE" ON TOP.  WE

        23  WERE LOOKING AT THAT BEFORE.

        24  A.   OKAY.

        25  Q.   NOW, WE WERE TALKING BEFORE ON THIS DOCUMENT THAT
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         1  MR. THOMANN, MR. SANTELLI AND MR. CLAFLIN MET WITH

         2  MR. GATES AND MR. KEMPIN AT COMDEX IN NOVEMBER OF '94;

         3  CORRECT?

         4  A.   YES, THAT'S CORRECT.

         5  Q.   AND IBM INFORMED MICROSOFT AT THAT MEETING, DIDN'T

         6  IT, THAT IBM DID NOT WANT TO PARTICIPATE IN THE PROPOSED

         7  ALLIANCE; CORRECT?

         8  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

         9  Q.   AND IBM ALSO INFORMED MICROSOFT AT THAT MEETING THAT

        10  IBM WOULD NOT PROMOTE MICROSOFT'S PRODUCTS; CORRECT?

        11  A.   I BELIEVE THAT'S CORRECT.  JOINTLY OR EXCLUSIVELY.

        12  Q.   WELL, WHAT MR. DUBINSKY WROTE NEXT TO "NO ALLIANCE"

        13  IS THAT "IBM WOULD NOT PROMOTE MICROSOFT PRODUCTS";

        14  CORRECT?

        15  A.   THAT'S WHAT HE WROTE.  YOU ALSO ASKED ME WHAT I

        16  RECALL, AND ALSO IN THE WORDS THAT WERE USED, AND I RECALL

        17  DID NOT PROMOTE JOINTLY OR EXCLUSIVELY.

        18  Q.   HE DID NOT USE THE WORDS "JOINTLY OR EXCLUSIVELY" IN

        19  CREATING THIS DOCUMENT; CORRECT?

        20  A.   THEY ARE NOT WRITTEN IN THE DOCUMENT, THAT'S CORRECT.

        21  Q.   WELL, DID ANY OF THE DOCUMENTS--DID ANY OF THE

        22  VARIOUS DRAFTS OF THE PROPOSED ALLIANCE, EVEN THE ONE THAT

        23  YOU SAW, DID ANY OF IT THAT YOU SEE REQUIRED IBM TO

        24  PROMOTE MICROSOFT PRODUCTS EXCLUSIVELY?

        25  A.   I WOULD HAVE TO LOOK BACK IN ALL OF THE DOCUMENTS TO
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         1  SEE IF I COULD FIND THAT WORDING, WHETHER IT WAS USED AND

         2  THEN TAKEN OUT OR PUT BACK IN AND TAKEN OUT.  I DON'T

         3  KNOW.  WHAT I'M TESTIFYING TO IS I SEE WHAT THE WORDS SAY

         4  HERE.  I DID NOT PROMOTE MICROSOFT PRODUCTS, BUT I HEARD

         5  EXCLUSIVELY OR JOINTLY, AS WELL.

         6  Q.   EVEN THE DRAFT THAT YOU SAW SAID "PRIMARILY PROMOTE"

         7  AND NOT "EXCLUSIVELY PROMOTE"; CORRECT?

         8  A.   THIS DRAFT READS "PRIMARILY," THAT'S CORRECT.

         9  Q.   AND THE LATER DRAFTS OR THE OTHER DRAFTS THAT I

        10  SHOWED YOU WHICH YOU HAD NOT SEEN BEFORE EXPRESSLY SAID

        11  "NOT EXCLUSIVE," DIDN'T THEY?

        12  A.   YES, THEY DID.

        13           THE COURT:  WOULD THIS BE AN APPROPRIATE TIME FOR

        14  THE AFTERNOON RECESS?

        15           MR. PEPPERMAN:  YES, YOUR HONOR.

        16           THE COURT:  DO YOU HAVE ANY IDEA HOW LONG YOU ARE

        17  GOING TO BE, MR. PEPPERMAN?

        18           MR. PEPPERMAN:  MAY WE APPROACH, YOUR HONOR?

        19           THE COURT:  SURE.

        20           (BENCH CONFERENCE.)

        21           MR. PEPPERMAN:  MY BEST ESTIMATE WOULD BE ABOUT

        22  FIVE OR SIX HOURS, SO MY HOPE WOULD BE THAT I WOULD FINISH

        23  END OF DAY TOMORROW, AND I WOULD GO A DAY AND A HALF,

        24  WHICH IS ESSENTIALLY WHAT MR. MALONE DID.

        25           THE COURT:  DOES KEEP YOU ON SCHEDULE?
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         1           MR. PEPPERMAN:  WELL, I INFORMED YOUR LAW CLERK,

         2  OUR UNDERSTANDING--MR. MALONE AND I DISCUSSED THIS

         3  BEFORE--THAT THE NEXT WITNESS IS GOING TO BE VERY SHORT.

         4  WE THINK THIS WILL KEEP IT ON SCHEDULE, AND I THINK AT

         5  MOST THE NEXT WITNESS MIGHT RUN OVER AN HOUR OR TWO ON

         6  FRIDAY.  THE NEXT WITNESS IS SIGNIFICANTLY SHORTER.

         7           THE COURT:  IT'S NOT GOING TO RUN OVER ON FRIDAY

         8  OF THIS WEEK.  IT WAS LAST FRIDAY THAT WE WERE GOING TO

         9  SIT.

        10           MR. PEPPERMAN:  OKAY.  I WOULD ASK THE

        11  COURT--MR. MALONE GOT A DAY AND A HALF FOR DIRECT, AND I

        12  COULD HAVE A DAY AND A HALF FOR CROSS, AND HOPEFULLY OUR

        13  REDIRECTS AND RECROSS WILL BE BRIEF.  I THINK WE MIGHT BE

        14  ABLE TO GET PROFESSOR FELTON IN ON THURSDAY AND MAYBE A

        15  LITTLE BIT OVER ON MONDAY.

        16           MR. MALONE:  YOUR HONOR, I HOPE NOT TO HAVE TO

        17  BRING HIM BACK ON MONDAY FOR JUST AN HOUR.  IF EACH OF US

        18  COULD TRY TO COMMIT TO DO HIM THURSDAY, THAT WOULD BE

        19  FINE, BUT THAT WOULD REQUIRE US FINISHING THIS WITNESS

        20  TOMORROW.  I DON'T THINK I WILL HAVE A LOT OF REDIRECT,

        21  BUT OBVIOUSLY I NEED SOME TIME.

        22           THE COURT:  WE ARE OBVIOUSLY GOING TO HAVE TO

        23  BRING HIM BACK TOMORROW BECAUSE WE ARE GOING TO QUIT AT

        24  4:00 THIS AFTERNOON HERE.  I HAVE ANOTHER COMMITMENT.

        25           MR. WARDEN:  YOU ARE GOING TO GO TO FOUR TODAY?
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         1           THE COURT:  YES.

         2           MR. WARDEN:  MR. FELTEN SHOULD BE SHORT, AND IF

         3  WE--

         4           THE COURT:  I HAVE LEARNED NOT TO COUNT MY

         5  CHICKENS UNTIL THEY ARE HATCHED.

         6           MR. WARDEN:  SO HAVE I, BUT WE DID ALREADY WITH

         7  DR. FISHER.  THIS FELLOW'S TURNED OUT TO BE MUCH LONGER ON

         8  DIRECT THIS TIME, AND IT'S GOING TO BE PRETTY LONG ON

         9  CROSS.

        10           THE COURT:  I GATHER HE DID.

        11           MR. PEPPERMAN:  YOUR HONOR, I WILL LOOK AT MY

        12  OUTLINE TONIGHT AND CUT SOME THINGS OUT, BUT I THINK I MAY

        13  NEED THE FULL DAY TOMORROW, ESPECIALLY IF WE ARE QUITTING

        14  AT 4:00 TODAY.

        15           THE COURT:  WELL, I'M NOT GOING TO TELL YOU THAT

        16  YOU CAN'T HAVE IT.  I'M NOT SURE HOW MUCH PROGRESS YOU

        17  HAVE MADE SO FAR, BUT WE WILL LEAVE THAT ASIDE.  BUT BE

        18  ECONOMICAL WITH YOUR EXAMINATION.

        19           MR. PEPPERMAN:  I WILL TRY, YOUR HONOR.

        20           THE COURT:  ALL RIGHT.  WE WILL RECONVENE FOR

        21  HALF AN HOUR AT ABOUT 3:30.

        22           (END OF BENCH CONFERENCE.)

        23           THE COURT:  WE WILL STAND IN RECESS UNTIL 3:30.

        24           (BRIEF RECESS.)

        25           THE COURT:  COUNSEL, APPROACH THE BENCH BRIEFLY.

                 (PAGES 58 THROUGH 60 UNDER SEAL)
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         1           (PROCEEDINGS IN OPEN COURT.)

         2           THE COURT:  MR. PEPPERMAN.

         3  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

         4  Q.   MR. NORRIS, I BELIEVE WHEN WE LEFT OFF, I HAD ASKED

         5  YOU WHETHER IBM TOLD MICROSOFT AT THE NOVEMBER 1994 COMDEX

         6  MEETING THAT IBM WOULD NOT PROMOTE MICROSOFT'S PRODUCTS.

         7  A.   YES.

         8  Q.   AND IBM ALSO TOLD MICROSOFT AT THE NOVEMBER 1994

         9  COMDEX MEETING THAT IBM WAS GOING TO PRE-LOAD OS/2 ON ALL

        10  OF ITS SYSTEMS; CORRECT?

        11  A.   THAT WE WOULD PRELOAD OS/2 AND WINDOWS 3.11, A

        12  MICROSOFT PRODUCT, ON AS MANY SYSTEMS AS WE CAN.

        13  Q.   IBM INFORMED MICROSOFT IN NOVEMBER 1994, DIDN'T IT,

        14  THAT BY PRE-LOADING OS/2 WARP ON ALL OF ITS SYSTEMS, IT

        15  WAS GOING TO TAKE THE LAUNCH OF WINDOWS 95 HEAD-ON;

        16  CORRECT?

        17  A.   I DON'T KNOW THAT THEY SAID THAT.

        18           MR. PEPPERMAN:  I ASK THAT THE WITNESS BE SHOWN,

        19  AND I OFFER INTO EVIDENCE, DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 2675,

        20  INTERNAL IBM DOCUMENTS ENTITLED "PALMISANO-KEMPIN

        21  MEETING," BEARS THE BATES NUMBERS 81563 THROUGH 72.

        22           THE COURT:  YOUR NUMBER AGAIN, MR. PEPPERMAN?

        23           MR. PEPPERMAN:  THIS WAS DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT

        24  2675, YOUR HONOR.

        25           THE COURT:  SEVENTY-FIVE.
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         1           MR. MALONE:  NO OBJECTION.

         2           THE COURT:  DEFENDANT'S 2675 IS ADMITTED.

         3                         (DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT NO. 2675 WAS

         4                          ADMITTED INTO EVIDENCE.)

         5  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

         6  Q.   MR. NORRIS, MY ONLY QUESTION ABOUT THIS DOCUMENT IS

         7  GOING TO BE AT THE LAST PAGE OF THE EXHIBIT, THE VERY LAST

         8  PAGE THAT BEARS THE BATES NUMBER 81572.

         9           THE COURT:  THE DATE OF THIS IS 10/9/96?

        10           MR. PEPPERMAN:  THAT'S WHAT THE HANDWRITING

        11  INDICATES ON THIS DOCUMENT.

        12           THE COURT:  THIS IS AN IBM DOCUMENT?

        13           MR. PEPPERMAN:  YES, IT IS, YOUR HONOR, PRODUCED

        14  BY IBM?

        15           THE COURT:  AND IT'S A MEMO OF THE

        16  PALMISANO-KEMPIN MEETING?

        17           MR. PEPPERMAN:  RIGHT.

        18           THE WITNESS:  I WOULD LIKE TO REVIEW THE

        19  DOCUMENT, PLEASE.

        20  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

        21  Q.   SURE.

        22           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)

        23  Q.   AGAIN, SIR, MY ONLY QUESTION WILL BE ABOUT THE LAST

        24  BULLET ON THE LAST PAGE.

        25           (WITNESS REVIEWS DOCUMENT.)
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         1  Q.   HAVE YOU SEEN THIS DOCUMENT BEFORE, SIR?

         2  A.   I BELIEVE I HAVE SEEN THIS DOCUMENT EITHER IN THIS

         3  FORM OR IN ANOTHER FORM, YES.

         4  Q.   DO YOU KNOW WHO PREPARED IT?

         5  A.   THIS IS DEFINITELY DEAN DUBINSKY.

         6           THE COURT:  I'M SORRY?  DUBINSKY?

         7           THE WITNESS:  DEAN DUBINSKY.

         8  BY MR. PEPPERMAN:

         9  Q.   AND THE DATE OF THIS DOCUMENT, 10/9/96, IS THAT

        10  APPROXIMATELY ACCURATE OR CORRECT?

        11  A.   I BELIEVE IT IS APPROXIMATELY ACCURATE, SETTING UP A

        12  PALMISANO MEETING, BECAUSE PALMISANO DIDN'T COME IN UNTIL

        13  MID 1996.

        14  Q.   NOW, THE FIRST SENTENCE OF THE FIRST BULLET ON THE

        15  LAST PAGE READS, "THE LAST MEETING THAT BILL GATES HAD

        16  WITH IBM WAS AT FALL COMDEX.  IN THIS MEETING, RICK

        17  THOMANN REVIEWED THE FACT THAT IBM WOULD PRELOAD OS/2 ON

        18  ALL SYSTEMS, TAKING THE LAUNCH OF WINDOWS 95 HEAD-ON."

        19           NOW, IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT THE FALL

        20  COMDEX MEETING REFERRED TO THERE IS THE SAME NOVEMBER 1994

        21  COMDEX MEETING WE HAVE BEEN DISCUSSING?

        22  A.   I WOULD THINK SO, YES.

        23  Q.   AND WHEN YOU RECEIVED YOUR REVIEW FROM MR. DUBINSKY

        24  AND OTHERS IN MARCH OF '95, DID YOU LEARN THAT RICK

        25  THOMANN HAD REVIEWED WITH MR. GATES AT THAT MEETING THAT
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         1  IBM WOULD PRELOAD OS/2 ON ALL SYSTEMS, TAKING THE LAUNCH

         2  OF WINDOWS 95 HEAD-ON?

         3  A.   NO, I DISAGREE WITH THAT STATEMENT.  I BELIEVE THIS

         4  IS A CHARACTERIZATION TAKING THE LAUNCH OF WINDOWS 95

         5  HEAD-ON BY MR. DUBINSKY.

         6  Q.   BUT AGAIN, MR. DUBINSKY IS THE ONE WHO GAVE YOU YOUR

         7  REVIEW AND YOUR INFORMATION ABOUT THE EVENTS OF '94;

         8  CORRECT?

         9  A.   YES.  AND DOING THAT REVIEW, MR. DUBINSKY INFORMED ME

        10  THAT THEY WERE INFORMED--MICROSOFT WAS INFORMED--THAT WE

        11  WOULD BE PRELOADING OS/2, AND WINDOWS 3.11 TOGETHER ON THE

        12  SAME SYSTEM, ON ALL SYSTEMS THAT WE COULD SHIP AS SOON AS

        13  POSSIBLE.

        14  Q.   WELL, YOU DO AGREE, THOUGH, THAT IBM INFORMED

        15  MICROSOFT AT THE NOVEMBER COMDEX MEETING IT WOULD NOT

        16  PROMOTE MICROSOFT PRODUCTS?

        17  A.   JOINTLY OR EXCLUSIVELY, THAT'S CORRECT.

        18  Q.   AND THAT THEY WOULD PRELOAD OS/2, TOGETHER WITH

        19  WINDOWS 3.1 ON ALL IBM SYSTEMS; CORRECT?

        20  A.   THAT WE WOULD PRELOAD OS/2 AND WINDOWS 3.11 ON AS

        21  MANY SYSTEMS AS WE COULD.

        22  Q.   DID IBM, NEVERTHELESS, BELIEVE IT SHOULD RECEIVE THE

        23  LOWEST ROYALTY FOR WINDOWS 95?

        24  A.   THAT IBM BELIEVED THAT WE SHOULD RECEIVE THE LOWEST

        25  ROYALTIES FOR WINDOWS 95?
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         1  Q.   CORRECT.

         2  A.   YES, AND WE HAD A NUMBER OF REASONS FOR BELIEVING SO.

         3  Q.   LOWER THAN COMPAQ THAT HAD JOINTLY DEVELOPED THE

         4  PRODUCT WITH MICROSOFT?

         5  A.   WE CERTAINLY BELIEVE THAT AS WELL, YES.

         6  Q.   OKAY.  NOW, JUST TO SUM UP, IBM HAD REQUESTED A

         7  RELATIONSHIP ON PAR WITH COMPAQ'S RELATIONSHIP WITH

         8  MICROSOFT; CORRECT?

         9  A.   WE DID, YES.

        10  Q.   AND IBM HAD DONE SO SEVERAL TIMES IN 1994, TO YOUR

        11  KNOWLEDGE; CORRECT?

        12  A.   AGAIN, MY COMMENTS AS TO SEVERAL AND CONSTANT AND

        13  CONSISTENT WAS DURING MY TWO-YEAR PERIOD.  MY

        14  UNDERSTANDING COMING INTO THE JOB WAS THAT WE CERTAINLY

        15  HAD REQUESTED TO BE ON PAR WITH COMPAQ.

        16  Q.   AND AT IBM'S REQUEST, MICROSOFT OFFERED IBM OR

        17  FRONTLINE PARTNERSHIP COMPARABLE TO COMPAQ'S; CORRECT?

        18  A.   MY UNDERSTANDING IS THROUGH THE DOCUMENTS THAT IBM

        19  WAS OFFERED A FRONTLINE PARTNERSHIP SOMEWHAT COMPARABLE TO

        20  COMPAQ, YES.

        21  Q.   AND IBM REJECTED THAT FRONTLINE PARTNERSHIP; CORRECT?

        22  A.   IBM REJECTED IT BECAUSE WE COULD NOT PERFORM THE

        23  REQUIREMENTS OF THE AGREEMENT, SUCH AS PROMOTING MICROSOFT

        24  PRODUCTS EXCLUSIVELY OR JOINTLY; SUCH AS THE MDA, EVEN,

        25  WHICH REQUIRED US TO SHIP WINDOWS 95 AS A STANDARD
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         1  OPERATING SYSTEM; SUCH AS GETTING REBATES FOR MAKING

         2  WINDOWS 95 THE ONLY OPERATING SYSTEM WE ADVERTISED IN

         3  ADVERTISEMENTS.  IT WAS COLLECTIVELY THOSE THINGS THAT

         4  SAID PROMOTE JOINTLY OR EXCLUSIVELY.

         5  Q.   BUT MR. DUBINSKY, IN THE COUPLE OF DOCUMENTS WE

         6  LOOKED AT THAT HE CREATED, THESE VARIOUS CHARTS AND THE

         7  DRAFT LETTER TO MR. GERSTNER, HE DID NOT MENTION ANY OF

         8  THOSE OTHER THINGS; CORRECT?

         9  A.   I DO NOT SEE MENTION OF THOSE IN THE DOCUMENTS THAT

        10  HE CREATED.

        11  Q.   AND IT'S YOUR UNDERSTANDING, ISN'T IT, THAT JOACHIM

        12  KEMPIN OF MICROSOFT HAD STUCK HIS NECK OUT AT MICROSOFT IN

        13  NEGOTIATING A POTENTIAL ALLIANCE WITH IBM AT IBM'S

        14  REQUEST; CORRECT?

        15  A.   WHAT DO YOU MEAN BY "STUCK HIS NECK OUT"?

        16  Q.   WELL, IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT--WERE YOU

        17  INFORMED BY MICROSOFT THAT MR. KEMPIN HAD STUCK HIS NECK

        18  OUT IN NEGOTIATING A POTENTIAL ALLIANCE WITH IBM?

        19  A.   I NEED YOU TO DEFINE WHAT YOU MEAN BY "STUCK HIS NECK

        20  OUT."

        21  Q.   DO YOU HAVE AN UNDERSTANDING OF WHAT THAT PHRASE

        22  MEANS?

        23  A.   I NEED YOU TO DEFINE WHAT IT MEANS.

        24  Q.   CAN YOU LOOK AT PAGE 109 OF YOUR DEPOSITION, LINE 16,

        25  THROUGH PAGE 110, LINE 1.
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         1  A.   PAGE 109?

         2  Q.   109, LINE 16, THROUGH 110, LINE 1.

         3  A.   LINE 16 THROUGH--

         4  Q.   LINE 16 THROUGH LINE 1 ON PAGE 110.

         5  A.   YES, THAT DOES REFRESH MY MEMORY.

         6  Q.   LET ME READ IT INTO THE RECORD.

         7  A.   OKAY.

         8  Q.   (READING):

         9                "QUESTION:  WAS IBM TOLD BY ANYONE AT

        10           MICROSOFT, TO YOUR KNOWLEDGE, THAT MR. KEMPIN HAD

        11           STUCK HIS NECK OUT AT MICROSOFT IN NEGOTIATING A

        12           POTENTIAL ALLIANCE WITH IBM?"

        13           YOUR COUNSEL ASKED TO HAVE THE QUESTION READ

        14  BACK, AND YOUR ANSWER, (READING):

        15                "SITTING HERE TODAY, WHAT I CAN RECALL, I

        16           CAN RECALL DEAN DUBINSKY AGAIN MAKING A REMARK TO

        17           ME THAT HE WAS TOLD THAT BY BABER."

        18           NOW, WAS THAT YOUR TESTIMONY ON MAY 27TH, 1999?

        19  A.   YES.

        20  Q.   AND IT'S ALSO YOUR TESTIMONY TODAY?

        21  A.   THAT'S WHAT HE WAS TOLD BY BABER, YES.

        22  Q.   AND, IN FACT, IN DESCRIBING THESE EVENTS IN A

        23  DIFFERENT DOCUMENT, DEAN DUBINSKY OF IBM WROTE THAT IBM

        24  HAD, QUOTE, TURNED THE TABLES ON JOACHIM KEMPIN, DIDN'T

        25  HE?
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         1  A.   DEAN DID PREPARE A CHART THAT I RECALL SEEING IN

         2  PREPARATION FOR THE PALMISANO BRIEFING, WHICH I REJECTED,

         3  THAT SAID IBM TURNED THE TABLES ON KEMPIN.

         4  Q.   AGAIN, MR. DUBINSKY IS ONE OF THE PRINCIPAL PEOPLE

         5  WHO PROVIDED YOU YOUR INFORMATION ABOUT 1994; CORRECT?

         6  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

         7  Q.   AND BASED ON THE INFORMATION THAT MR. DUBINSKY HAD

         8  GIVEN YOU, YOU THOUGHT HIS CHARACTERIZATION OF THE EVENTS

         9  OF 1994 WAS INACCURATE?

        10  A.   I'M SORRY?  REPEAT THAT.

        11  Q.   I WILL WITHDRAW THE QUESTION.  I WILL MOVE ON.

        12           NOW, AFTER THE NOVEMBER 1994 MEETING AT COMDEX,

        13  IBM PURSUED AN INITIATIVE CALLED "IBM FIRST"; CORRECT?

        14  A.   AFTER THE--

        15  Q.   THE NOVEMBER '94 MEETING AT COMDEX, IBM PURSUED AN

        16  INITIATIVE CALLED "IBM FIRST"; CORRECT?

        17  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        18  Q.   AND, IN FACT, IBM HAD INFORMED MICROSOFT AT THE

        19  NOVEMBER 1994 MEETING THAT IBM WAS GOING TO PURSUE THIS

        20  INITIATIVE; CORRECT?

        21  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

        22  Q.   NOW, PURSUANT TO THIS "IBM FIRST" INITIATIVE, IBM

        23  ATTEMPTED TO MARKET AND SELL IBM PRODUCTS TO CUSTOMERS

        24  FIRST; CONTRACT?

        25  A.   WHAT'S WRONG WITH THAT?
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         1  Q.   NOTHING.

         2           THE ANSWER IS YES; CORRECT?

         3  A.   YES.

         4  Q.   AND IBM ALSO TOLD MICROSOFT THAT IT WOULD NOT

         5  EVANGELIZE OR PROMOTE MICROSOFT'S PRODUCTS; CORRECT?

         6  A.   THAT'S CORRECT.

         7  Q.   AND IBM'S POSITION WAS THAT ALTHOUGH IT WOULD SUPPORT

         8  MICROSOFT PRODUCTS LIKE WINDOWS, IF CUSTOMERS SELECTED

         9  THEM, THAT IBM'S FIRST PRIORITY WAS TO SELL AND PROMOTE

        10  IBM SOLUTIONS ON IBM PLATFORMS; CORRECT?

        11  A.   FIRST, YES.

        12  Q.   NOW, AFTER THE NOVEMBER 1994 COMDEX MEETING,

        13  MICROSOFT INFORMED IBM THAT IBM WOULD BE TREATED JUST LIKE

        14  ANY OTHER OEM; CORRECT?

        15  A.   YES.

        16  Q.   AND MICROSOFT ALSO INFORMED IBM THAT IT WOULD PROVIDE

        17  IBM WITH THE STANDARD WINDOWS 95 LICENSE AGREEMENT;

        18  CORRECT?

        19  A.   YES.

        20  Q.   NOW, IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY, SIR, THAT AFTER NOVEMBER

        21  OF 1994--WITHDRAWN.

        22           YOU TESTIFIED YESTERDAY ABOUT ANY OTHER OEM

        23  BEING--INCLUDING WHITE-BOX MANUFACTURERS; DO YOU REMEMBER

        24  THAT?

        25  A.   YES, I DO.
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         1  Q.   NOW, IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY, SIR, THAT AFTER NOVEMBER

         2  1994, MICROSOFT TREATED IBM LIKE A WHITE-BOX MANUFACTURER?

         3  A.   IT IS MY TESTIMONY THAT MICROSOFT TREATED IBM, AS

         4  THEY SAY, ANY OTHER OEM, WHICH MEANT THAT WE WOULD BE

         5  PLACED IN A LOWER TIER THAN A TOP-TIER PC MANUFACTURER,

         6  INCLUDING WHITE-BOX MANUFACTURERS.

         7  Q.   WELL, DIDN'T MICROSOFT INFORM IBM THAT IT WOULD BE

         8  PLACED IN A TIER BELOW COMPAQ AND BE TREATED LIKE OEM'S

         9  SUCH AS HEWLETT-PACKARD, PACKARD-BELL, DELL, TOSHIBA?

        10  A.   THE WORDS IN THE BRIEFING, AS I RECEIVED IN MARCH AND

        11  FROM OTHER SOURCES, WAS THAT WE WOULD BE TREATED AS ANY

        12  OTHER OEM, AND ANY OTHER WOULD INCLUDE EVERYONE BELOW

        13  COMPAQ, INCLUDING WHITE-BOX MANUFACTURERS, WHICH MEANS IT

        14  COULD BE BELOW DEC OR HP BECAUSE THEY WERE ALLIANCE

        15  PARTNERS WITH MICROSOFT WHO HAD THE CERTIFICATIONS AND

        16  ENABLING PROGRAMS, WHEREAS SOME OF THE WHITE-BOX

        17  MANUFACTURERS MAY NOT HAVE, AND ALSO GOT WORSE TERMS AND

        18  CONDITIONS THAN THOSE ALLIANCE PARTNERS ON THE FRONTLINE

        19  PARTNERSHIP.

        20  Q.   WASN'T IT YOUR TESTIMONY THAT MICROSOFT, IN FACT,

        21  TREATED IBM, AFTER NOVEMBER 1994, LIKE A WHITE-BOX

        22  MANUFACTURER?

        23  A.   AGAIN--

        24  Q.   YES, NO, I DON'T KNOW, AND THEN PROVIDE CONTEXT, SIR.

        25  A.   I THINK I JUST ANSWERED THE QUESTION.
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         1  Q.   I DON'T THINK YOU ANSWERED IT DIRECTLY, SIR.

         2  A.   LET ME HAVE IT AGAIN.

         3  Q.   IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY THAT AFTER NOVEMBER 1994,

         4  MICROSOFT TREATED IBM LIKE A WHITE-BOX MANUFACTURER?  AND

         5  YOU COULD ANSWER THAT YES, NO, I DON'T KNOW, AND THEN

         6  PROVIDE CONTEXT.

         7  A.   YES, AND I WILL PROVIDE CONTEXT.

         8  Q.   GO AHEAD, SIR.

         9  A.   ALL RIGHT.  WE WERE GIVEN STANDARD TERMS AND

        10  CONDITIONS FOR THE WINDOWS AGREEMENTS.  WE WERE INFORMED

        11  THAT WE WOULD BE TREATED AS ANY OTHER OEM, WHICH MEANT NOT

        12  ONLY AN ALLIANCE PARTNER BECAUSE DEC AND HP WERE NOT--WERE

        13  ALLIANCE PARTNERS.  THAT'S NOT ANY OTHER OEM.  COMPAQ WAS

        14  A FRONTLINE PARTNER.  THAT'S NOT ANY OTHER OEM.  WHEN

        15  ASKED ABOUT THE VOLUMES AND THE REVENUE THAT WE DID,

        16  MICROSOFT TOLD US, "YOU'RE NOT ONE OF THE TOP-TIER REVENUE

        17  PRODUCERS FOR MICROSOFT."  COMPANIES THAT WERE BELOW THOSE

        18  THAT HAD NO STANDINGS WITH MICROSOFT BUT MAY HAVE BEEN IN

        19  THE CERTIFIED SOLUTION PROVIDER PROGRAM MAY HAVE BEEN A

        20  WHITE-BOX MANUFACTURER, BUT WE DIDN'T EVEN HAVE THAT

        21  STATUS.

        22  Q.   BUT--

        23  A.   MAY I FINISH, PLEASE?

        24  Q.   SURE.

        25  A.   THERE WERE ALSO COMPANIES THAT SHIPPED MINIMAL AMOUNT
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         1  OF SYSTEMS--WHEN I SAY MINIMAL, 1,000 SYSTEMS A YEAR,

         2  10,000 SYSTEMS A YEAR THAT WE CLASSIFY IN THAT WHITE-BOX

         3  CLASSIFICATION THAT MAY HAVE HAD FIVE MICROSOFT CERTIFIED

         4  PROFESSIONALS, BUT MAY HAVE ALSO HAD A STATUS AS A

         5  MICROSOFT CERTIFIED SOLUTION PROVIDER, WHICH WE DIDN'T

         6  HAVE.

         7           SO, IT IS MY TESTIMONY WE DIDN'T HAVE THE SAME

         8  RIGHTS AND ACCESS TO THE PRODUCTS, TO THE PROGRAMS, TO THE

         9  CODE, TO THE PRICES, TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS, THAT THE

        10  TOP-TIER PC MANUFACTURERS HAD.

        11  Q.   ARE YOU FINISHED, SIR?

        12  A.   YES.

        13  Q.   IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY, SIR, THAT THE IBM CORPORATION

        14  RECEIVED THE SAME TERMS AND CONDITIONS AND ROYALTIES AS A

        15  WHITE-BOX MANUFACTURER MAKING 500, A THOUSAND, A

        16  HUNDRED-THOUSAND MACHINES OUT OF A GARAGE?  IS THAT YOUR

        17  TESTIMONY?

        18  A.   AS YOU SAID TO ME--

        19  Q.   YES, NO, I DON'T KNOW, AND THEN PROVIDE WHATEVER

        20  CONTEXT.

        21  A.   NOW IT'S NO.  YOU'RE ASKING ME ABOUT TERMS AND

        22  CONDITIONS.  I HAVEN'T SEEN A CONTRACT AGREEMENT FROM

        23  ANOTHER OEM.  AND I ALSO, AS YOU ASKED ME EARLIER TODAY,

        24  HAVE I SEEN COMPAQ'S AGREEMENT?  NO.

        25  Q.   SO, LEAVING ASIDE--
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         1  A.   I HAVEN'T FINISHED.

         2  Q.   GO AHEAD AND FINISH, SIR.

         3  A.   I WOULD LIKE THE QUESTION AGAIN.

         4  Q.   IS IT YOUR TESTIMONY THAT IBM RECEIVED THE SAME

         5  TERMS, CONDITIONS AND ROYALTIES AS A WHITE-BOX

         6  MANUFACTURER SHIPPING A THOUSAND, 10,000 MACHINES OUT OF A

         7  GARAGE SOMEWHERE?  IS THAT YOUR TESTIMONY, SIR?  YES, NO,

         8  I DON'T KNOW, AND THEN PROVIDE WHATEVER CONTEXT YOU LIKE,

         9  THE IBM CORPORATION.

        10  A.   THE IBM PC COMPANY, IT IS MY TESTIMONY THAT WE

        11  RECEIVED DIFFERENT TREATMENT AS A PC MANUFACTURER FROM

        12  COMPAQ, WHO HAD A FRONTLINE PARTNERSHIP--

        13  Q.   THAT WASN'T MY QUESTION, SIR.

        14  A.   I'M NOT UNDERSTANDING YOUR QUESTION, THEN.  I'M

        15  CONFUSED.

        16  Q.   I THINK IT'S A SIMPLE QUESTION.  YOU REFERRED TO

        17  WHITE-BOX MANUFACTURERS SHIPPING TEN, FIFTY, A THOUSAND, A

        18  HUNDRED-THOUSAND, 50,000 MACHINES.

        19           MY QUESTION FOR YOU:  IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING,

        20  LEAVING ASIDE THE FACT THAT YOU HAVEN'T SEEN THEIR

        21  AGREEMENTS, THAT THE IBM PC COMPANY RECEIVED THE SAME

        22  TERMS AND CONDITIONS IN ITS LICENSE AND THE SAME ROYALTY

        23  AS THOSE WHITE-BOX MANUFACTURERS?  IS THAT YOUR TESTIMONY?

        24  A.   I CAN'T TESTIFY TO THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS THEY HAVE

        25  IN THEIR LICENSE AGREEMENT, BUT I CAN TESTIFY BECAUSE IT'S
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         1  PUBLIC KNOWLEDGE AS TO WHETHER OR NOT THAT WHITE-BOX

         2  MANUFACTURER IS CERTIFIED AS A MICROSOFT--

         3  Q.   THAT WASN'T MY QUESTION, SIR.

         4  A.   YOU SAID TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

         5  Q.   HOW ABOUT ROYALTIES?  YOU TESTIFIED ABOUT IBM'S

         6  ROYALTIES RELATIVE TO OTHER OEM'S WHOSE AGREEMENTS YOU

         7  HAVE NOT SEEN.

         8           IS IT YOUR UNDERSTANDING THAT THE IBM PC COMPANY

         9  PAID THE SAME ROYALTY FOR WINDOWS 95 THAT THE WHITE-BOX

        10  MANUFACTURERS DID?  IS THAT YOUR TESTIMONY?

        11  A.   I DON'T KNOW.

        12           MR. PEPPERMAN:  THIS IS AN APPROPRIATE TIME FOR A

        13  BREAK, YOUR HONOR.

        14           THE COURT:  I THINK IT IS.

        15           ALL RIGHT.  WE WILL RESUME AT 10:00 TOMORROW

        16  MORNING.

        17           (WHEREUPON, AT 4:01 P.M., THE HEARING WAS

        18  ADJOURNED UNTIL 10:00 A.M., THE FOLLOWING DAY.)

        19

        20

        21

        22

        23

        24

        25
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         1                   CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

         2

         3           I, DAVID A. KASDAN, RMR, COURT REPORTER, DO

         4  HEREBY TESTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING PROCEEDINGS WERE

         5  STENOGRAPHICALLY RECORDED BY ME AND THEREAFTER REDUCED TO

         6  TYPEWRITTEN FORM BY COMPUTER-ASSISTED TRANSCRIPTION UNDER

         7  MY DIRECTION AND SUPERVISION; AND THAT THE FOREGOING

         8  TRANSCRIPT IS A TRUE RECORD AND ACCURATE RECORD OF THE

         9  PROCEEDINGS.

        10           I FURTHER CERTIFY THAT I AM NEITHER COUNSEL FOR,

        11  RELATED TO, NOR EMPLOYED BY ANY OF THE PARTIES TO THIS

        12  ACTION IN THIS PROCEEDING, NOR FINANCIALLY OR OTHERWISE

        13  INTERESTED IN THE OUTCOME OF THIS LITIGATION.

        14

                                    ______________________

        15                          DAVID A. KASDAN
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        20

        21

        22

        23

        24
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